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Honourable Thembelani Thulas Nxesi

Minister of Public Works

MINISTER’S
FOREWORD

“It is commendable 
that the cidb has 
sustained efforts to 
equip clients with 
the knowledge and 
tools required to 
implement effective 
programmes 
for sustainable 
contractor 
development.”
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South Africa needs a robust construction industry to deliver 

infrastructure to meet the country’s socio-economic needs. 

In the past few years Government has embarked on an 

ambitious plan for infrastructure development to stimulate 

economic growth, create jobs and help eradicate poverty 

and inequality. The leadership role of the Construction 

Industry Development Board (cidb) to facilitate construction 

industry development and focus stakeholder attention on 

performance and delivery is critical. 

This Annual Report reflects the work undertaken by the 

cidb over the past year, to keep the industry on a solid 

development trajectory. I am encouraged by the progress 

achieved by the cidb to improve the Register of Contractors’ 

ability to support the development of emerging contractors, 

whilst also maintaining its primary function to be a macro risk 

management tool for procurement in the public sector. This 

is critical for delivery and transformation. In the past year the 

cidb has witnessed an increase in the number of contractors 

moving up to Grades 7 and 8 and others succeeding to 

maintain these grades. 

It is commendable that the cidb has sustained efforts to 

equip clients with the knowledge and tools required to 

implement effective programmes for sustainable contractor 

development. This is important to sustain a healthy balance 

between regulation and development. 

During the period under review the cidb consolidated its 

programme to strengthen compliance to its procurement 

prescripts. With increased focus on infrastructure 

development procurement efficiency has never been more 

critical to unlock public sector delivery capacity, fight 

corruption and to harness Government’s buying power to 

grow emerging enterprises.  

I thank the Board and staff of the cidb for their valuable 

contribution to the construction industry and its development 

including their hard work during the 2014/15 financial year. 

I wish to pay a special tribute to the late Nomsa Jacobs-Skweyiya 

who passed on suddenly and unexpectedly in December 2014, 

while on cidb duty as a Board Member. Within a very short 

period of time Ms Jacobs-Skweyiya had made an invaluable 

contribution to the work of the cidb and left an indelible mark 

in our hearts. I wish to thank her family for their support 

during her brief period of serving the Department of Public 

Works in her capacity as a cidb Board Member.  

Hon. TW Nxesi (MP)

Minister of Public Works

Date: 31 July 2015 
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Lindelwa T. Myataza

Chairperson: cidb Board

CHAIRPERSON’S 
STATEMENT

“To date, the cidb 
has made great 
strides towards 
building a solid 
foundation for the 
development and 
transformation of 
the construction 
industry.”
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It is my pleasure to present this report of the work of the 

cidb over the past financial year. The appointment of the 

new Board as well as the 2nd Five Year Review of the cidb 

presented the cidb with an opportunity to reflect on progress 

made by the organisation to deliver on its mandate, and to 

also review the direction it has taken since inception.

To date, the cidb has made great strides towards building 

a solid foundation for the development and transformation 

of the construction industry. Much work, however, still 

needs to be done.  Some of the interventions put in place 

include ongoing improvements to key mechanisms such as 

the Register of Contractors, which categorises contractors 

according to capability to carry out construction projects; 

the Register of Projects which reflects the size, nature and 

distribution of projects nationally; and the Standard for 

Uniformity in Construction Procurement, which ensures 

that clients use standard approaches in procurement 

of infrastructure in a manner that supports efficacious 

construction industry development. 

The cidb has continued to capacitate public sector clients to 

comply with the requirements of its procurement prescripts 

including the cidb i-tender, which functions as an entry gate 

into the cidb Register of Projects.  Increased focus is now 

on consolidating the integrated and effective functioning of 

these afore-mentioned key initiatives, which are mandated 

by our founding legislation - the CIDB Act 38 of 2000.

I am pleased to report that during the period under review, 

the cidb increased the scope of compliance monitoring, to 

ensure that ultimately all clients are supported to comply; 

where necessary, appropriate regulatory measures and 

related enforcement mechanisms shall be implemented.  

Positive trends in contractor registers were observed in 

the Financial Year 2014/15, with an increased number of 

contractors qualifying for the higher grades 7 and 8 and 

also maintaining these grades. These positive movements 

are largely attributable to amendments of the Construction 

Industry Development (CID) Regulations, which came into 

effect during August 2013. These amendments ushered in 

improvements to the cidb grading criteria. It is therefore 

critical for the cidb to provide ongoing support and 

development of contractors, to ensure their sustainability 

and continued upward mobility through various instruments 

at its disposal in line with its mandate

Industry sustainability also hinges on improved performance. 

Robust discussions were undertaken, within the cidb and 

externally with industry stakeholders, on the requisite 

measures to bring about industry performance improvement. 

These discussions have been instrumental to the development 

and publishing, for public comment, of the latest draft 

standards and best practices in the Government Gazette.  

Significant work was also undertaken to support industry 

stakeholders in their efforts to improve contractor 

development using cidb best practice guidelines.  

During the financial year under review, the first study 

on the cidb’s organisational culture, since its inception, 

was undertaken. The results of this study are incisive and 

continue to inform cidb strategies towards strengthening 

the organisation’s capabilities to deliver on its mandate.  

Although the study points to the need for decisive changes 

in various areas, it also highlighted high levels of enthusiasm 

among staff to individually and collectively work towards 

actualisation of needed change – positive attitudes that the 

cidb shall build upon going forward. On behalf of the Board, 

I thank the cidb management and staff for their hard work 

and commitment to the attainment of the cidb’s articulated 

objectives.

During December 2014, the Board was saddened by the 

sudden and unexpected loss of Ms Nomsa Jacobs-Skweyiya, 

one of the newly-appointed Board Members. This Annual 

Report is dedicated to the memory of Ms Nomsa Jacobs-

Skweyiya: recalling the invaluable contribution that she made 

to the work of the Board and cidb in the short period of her 

service. Ms Skweyiya left an indelible mark in our hearts and 

minds with her warm and friendly disposition, high energy 

levels and unflinching commitment to the work of the Board 

and the construction industry.  She is sorely missed. Our 

heartfelt gratitude goes to her family for their full support to 

her throughout her brief tenure on the Board.   

I wish to thank the Honorable Minister of Public Works, Mr 

Thulas Nxesi; the Honorable Deputy Minister, Mr Jeremy 

Cronin; the Director General, Mr Mziwonke Dlabantu and 

the senior management of the Department of Public Works 

for their unwavering support and guidance to the cidb 

throughout the year.

Lindelwa T. Myataza

Chairperson: cidb Board

Date: 31 July 2015
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Inba Thumbiran 

Acting Chief Executive Officer

CEO’S
REPORT

“With infrastructure 
as a key pillar 
of economic 
development, the 
construction industry 
has a critical role to 
play in supporting 
Government to 
realise the country’s 
infrastructure 
development plans.”
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With infrastructure as a key pillar of economic 

development, the construction industry has a critical role 

to play in supporting Government to realise the country’s 

infrastructure development plans and to unlock the potential 

for infrastructure budgets to contribute to transformation. 

The cidb strategies are geared towards supporting improved 

construction industry performance to enhance this role.  

In the 2014/15 Financial Year the cidb continued to strengthen 

the capacity of its existing tools to improve construction 

industry performance. Procurement reform remained a 

key focus, in particular, enforcement of compliance to cidb 

prescripts including the Register of Contractors, i-tender/ 

Register of Projects and the cidb Code of Conduct for parties 

engaged in construction procurement

The cidb consolidated its role to monitor compliance with 

these procurement prescripts. Reports of findings and 

progress were published in the quarterly Compliance Monitor, 

which is available on the cidb website. The Compliance 

Monitor continues to serve as an early warning system to 

clients to gauge their individual compliance levels in order to 

improve, as well as for the cidb to identify critical areas which 

require intervention. 

One of these interventions is capacitation, particularly where 

clients indicate poor knowledge and understanding of how 

to implement the cidb prescripts. The cidb has provided 

outreach to public sector clients across the nine provinces. 

This has resulted in noticeable compliance improvement 

overall, and with specific clients and provinces. The role of 

cidb Provincial Offices has been instrumental in broadening 

the cidb’s internal capacity to provide client outreach.

The cidb has also taken disciplinary action where clients 

have shown a lack of interest in compliance. Compliance 

enforcement also extended to contractors. The organisation 

has completed its investigation and has issued charges to the 

fifteen construction companies which have admitted guilt for 

collusion, to the Competition Commission. The charges were 

issued in terms of section 29 of the CID Regulations of 2004 

as amended, the Code of Conduct for parties involved in 

construction procurement and the CIDB Act No.38 of 2000.

The number of contractors qualifying for Grades 7 and 8 on the 

cidb Register of Contractors increased. This follows changes to 

the requirements for registration, in terms of the CID Regulation 

amendments which came into effect in August 2013. The cidb 

will continue to monitor these trends going forward. 

The number of Grade 1 contractor registrations grew from 

70,002 in March 2014 to 98,877 at the end of the 2014/15 

Financial Year. The fast growing pace of Grade 1 registrations 

continues to put pressure on the levels of competition in this 

grade as well as on the construction industry’s contractor 

development capacity. 

I am pleased to report that the cidb was able to achieve, and 

in some instances exceed the target 90% turnaround time for 

processing of compliant Grade 2 to 9 contractor applications 

as well as the 48 hour turnaround time for processing Grade 

1 contractor applications. 

There has been progress in taking forward the construction 

industry standards which will form part of the planned 

cidb Best Practice Project Assessment Scheme and the Best 

Practice Contractor Recognition Scheme. 

The cidb conducted a culture survey to assess its internal 

capability to effectively implement its mandate. Although 

the study indicates positive levels of staff commitment and 

enthusiasm, decisive measures are also required to address 

the many areas for improvement that the study findings have 

highlighted. 

I wish to express gratitude to the Honourable Minister Nxesi, 

the Director General and staff of the Department of Public 

Works for their support during this period. I thank the Board 

especially, for their faith in entrusting me with the mammoth 

task of steering the ship during this period of change. 

Most importantly I thank the executive team and staff of 

the cidb across the geographic spread of the country, for 

their commitment and support of my interim position at the 

helm of the organisation. I look forward to the united and 

continuous support of all stakeholders to ensure that the 

cidb advances its role as construction industry development 

champion.  

Inba Thumbiran

Acting Chief Executive Officer

Date: 31 July 2015
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From left to right: Chris Jiyane (Deputy Chairperson), Gonasagran Maduray, 

Hareesh Patel, Lindelwa T. Myataza (Chairperson), Nico Maas, Vuyiswa Sidzumo

From left to right: Sipho Mosai, Lefadi Makibinyane, Michael Makhura, 

Natalie Skeepers, Mandisa Fatyela-Lindie, Nazreen Pandor

In memory of 

Nomsa Jacobs-Skweyiya
She will be remembered by the industry as a great protagonist of women empowerment in construction, 
who fought tirelessly for the advancement and recognition of the critical role that women play in 
business and in the built environment professions. She was an astute business woman, a community 

leader and a compassionate person who taught and mentored many in the industry.

BOARD MEMBERS
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From left to right: Ebrahim Moola (Programme Manager: Contractor Registers Services (CRS)), 

Hlengiwe Khumalo (CFO), Inba Thumbiran (Acting CEO), 

Gerard Naidoo (Programme Manager: Provincial Offices and Contractor Development (PCD)),

 Rodney Milford (Programme Manager: Construction Industry Performance (CIP))

EXECUTIVE TEAM
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CIDB Act 38 of 
2000 mandates the 
cidb to promote 
procurement reform 
and standardisation 
of the procurement 
process.

1. PUBLIC SECTOR 
PROCUREMENT REFORM
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Compliance and Enforcement

The Construction Industry Development Board (cidb) Act 38 

of 2000 mandates the cidb to promote procurement reform 

and to, within the framework of the policy of Government, 

promote the standardisation of the procurement process 

with regards to the construction industry. 

 

To further this mandate the cidb has established: 

•  The Standard for Uniformity in Construction 

Procurement which establishes uniform systems, 

processes, procedures and documentation across the 

public sector;

•  The Register of Contractors (RoC) which grades and 

categorises contractors according to capability to carry 

out construction projects;

•  i-tender providing for mandatory advertising of 

construction tenders on the cidb website;

•  The Register of Projects (RoP) providing for the 

mandatory registration of construction contracts 

awards on the cidb website; and 

•  The Code of Conduct for all parties engaged in 

construction procurement.

Together these instruments constitute the cidb prescripts. 

It is mandatory for all public sector clients to comply with 

the cidb prescripts when procuring for construction. The 

CID Regulations of 2004, as amended, establish the legal 

framework for the cidb to enforce industry compliance with 

these prescripts. 

Compliance with i-tender/Register of Projects

The cidb Compliance Monitor provides indicators of the level 

of compliance with the i-tender/Register of Projects by client 

bodies. It is used by clients to verify their levels of compliance 

with regulations and by the cidb to improve enforcement 

actions. The Compliance Monitor is integral to the cidb’s 
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proactive approach to improve compliance. It is being rolled-

out incrementally, and currently focuses on all the national and 

provincial departments of works and roads, all public entities, all 

Metropolitan Councils and selected high capacity municipalities. 

The cidb addresses non-compliance through one-on-one 

interactions with the relevant client departments. Quarterly 

discussions are also held in each province through the 

Construction Procurement Officers (CPOs) forums. As 

illustrated below, good progress and improvement is being 

observed amongst many client departments, with an 

increase in registration of projects on i-tender/Register of 

Projects from 60% in 2013 Quarter 3 to around 80% at 2014 

Quarter 4. 

Table 1 below shows compliance levels with i-tender, in different provinces across the various categories of clients. 

Table 1: Compliance Statistics on Tender Notices per Province

 
National & 

SOC
Provincial

Metropolitan 

Councils

High Capacity 

Municipalities

Other 

Implementing 

Agencies

Total 

Compliance %

National & SOC 86%     

NC  96% - - - 96%

WC  97% 83% 84% - 91%

NW  85% - 91% - 87%

LP  91% - 96% 63% 79%

FS  82% 84% 90% 100% 73%

GP  84% 37% 91% 89% 70%

EC  94% 63% 73% 75% 57%

MP  79% - 68% - 57%

KZ  33% 77% 42% 84% 37%

Sub-total 69% 74% 70% 83% 

Total 74%  

State of compliance with i-tender

100%

90%

80%

70%

60%

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

2013Q3 2013Q4 2014Q1 2014Q2 2014Q3 2014Q4

National Government & SoCs Provincial Government Metros & Selected High Capacity Municipalities
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The cidb anonymous fraud hotline provides a channel for stakeholders to blow the whistle on incidents of non-compliance. Alerts 

can also be e.mailed or posted. All reported cases are followed up and investigated, and where sufficient grounds exist to charge 

suspected culprits, a formal inquiry is convened in terms of Part 5 of the CID Regulations.

Table 2 below shows the number of reported cases of non-compliance by province, which resulted in investigations: 

Table 2: Provincial statistics on investigations conducted during the period under review 

Period Incidents of non-compliance by clients per Province
Total 

April 2014 - March 2015 GP MP NW KZN LP NC FS EC WC

Non-compliance to the conditions of tender in the 
Standard for Uniformity

10   1 2 2  2  1 18

Award of contracts to contactors not -registered 
with cidb 

  1 1  1  1  4

a) Capacitating clients for compliance 

The on-going efforts to capacitate clients through training, 

information sharing sessions and troubleshooting continued 

in the 2014/15 Financial Year. Capacitation is available to all 

public sector clients on request and at no cost to the client. It 

covers a wide spectrum of construction procurement within 

the public sector, including:

• The legislative framework;

• Powers and functions of supply chain management;

•  Procurement documents for construction and 

engineering projects;

• Solicitation of tender offers;

•  Evaluation of tender offers; and 

•  Implementation of infrastructure projects. 

At least fifty engagements were conducted with clients in 

the form of workshops, information sharing sessions and 

CPO forums across the nine provinces. CPOs are dedicated 

forums for procurement officials to share knowledge, good 

practices, strategies and challenges, as well as to engage 

with strategic partners such as the Auditor-General, national 

and provincial Treasuries. 

Procurement competence Standard for the public sector

The cidb has developed a draft competence standard for 

officials responsible for construction procurement, to support 

procurement skills development in the public sector. 

The objectives of the Standard are to:

•  Provide a framework for performing and promoting a 

wide range of value-added procurement activities;

•  Improve organisational business processes and procedures 

in executing the construction procurement function;

•  Establish a basic set of principles for any party 

responsible for executing a construction procurement 

function;

•  Establish a common basis to evaluate performance. 

Standard for gateway reviews

The cidb has developed a standard for delivery and 

maintenance of infrastructure using the gateway review 

system. The draft Standard will form part of the Infrastructure 

Delivery Management Toolkit (IDMT), which maps out a step 

by step process towards efficient and effective delivery of 

infrastructure. The gateway standard sets out an evaluation 

process and criteria for each stage of infrastructure delivery 

completed. The evaluation outcome forms the basis for 

decision making on further stages of the project, including 

funding. 

Integrity Management Standard

The cidb has developed an Integrity Management Standard 

for the construction industry. A pilot project to promote the 

standards to enhance transparency and accountability on 

construction projects will be introduced in the next Financial 

Year. Work done in this regard will culminate in the final 

model for an anti-corruption system for the construction 

industry.
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Register of Contractors

The Register of Contractors has been established in terms 

of the CIDB Act (Act 38 of 2000). It grades and categorises 

contractors according to financial and works capability. It 

is mandatory for public sector clients to apply the Register 

when considering construction works tenders. The Register 

of Contractors which facilitates public sector procurement 

and promotes contractor development has been firmly 

established as a key component of the public sector 

procurement regime.

The Register was first implemented in June 2004, making 

Financial Year 2014/15 its 10th anniversary year. It is useful 

to reflect on the development of the Register of Contractors 

over that period. 

The number of registrations grew from 1,500 to well over 

100,000 over the past 10 years. In order to provide adequate 

service to contractors the cidb’s office infrastructure grew 

from one office in Pretoria to 10 offices countrywide. 

Over the period there have been six amendments to the 

Construction Industry Development Regulations, 2004. 

These were designed to align the Register of Contractors 

with the operating environment in the construction industry 

and with the state of the economy. The cidb is committed 

to keeping the Register of Contractors relevant so that it 

continues to serve as an effective macro risk management 

tool for the public sector, as well as a framework for 

contractor development. 

It is worth reflecting on the impact of the previous suite of 

regulation amendments published in the 2013/14 Financial 

Year. Since implementation of the amendments there has 

been a notable trend in contractor upgrades, especially from 

Grades 7 to 8. The amendments eased the requirements for 

contractors to upgrade while still maintaining the purpose 

of the Register of Contractors as a public sector macro risk 

management tool. Statistics from the Register of Contractors, 

including the upgrading of contractors are included under 

the section: Monitoring Industry Performance.

Processing of registration applications

Grade 1 Registrations

The cidb’s target during Financial Year 2014/15 was to 

process 90% of Grade 1 applications within 48 hours. This 

target was achieved and exceeded, as shown in Table 3 

below. All Grade 1 registrations are processed in the cidb 

provincial offices.

Table 3: Provincial statistics for registration of Grade 1  

Grade 1 - turnaround time 1 April 2014 - 31 March 2015

KZN EC FS GP Limp Mpu NW NC WC Total

Total number of Grade 1 processed 9 650 4 432 1 717 13 390 3 131 1 711 1 739 797 1 520 37 997

Number registered within 48 hours 8 823 4 179 1 609 11 817 3 112 1 559 1 673 756 1 480 35 008

Number registered outside 48 hours 737 253 108 1 573 19 152 66 41 40 2 989

% within 48 hours (B/A x 100) 92% 94% 94% 88% 99% 91% 96% 95% 97% 92%

The Gauteng Provincial Office received the highest number 

of Grade 1 applications (13,390) followed by KwaZulu-Natal 

at 9,560. The high volume of Grade 1 applications received in 

Gauteng was due in part, to applications received from other 

provinces. Also worth noting is the spikes in the number 

of Grade 1 applications in the Gauteng and KwaZulu-Natal 

provinces. This has challenged the cidb to find innovative 

ways to maximise the use of existing resources in order to 

maintain appropriate levels of service to contractors.  

 

Contractors rated Provincial Offices 93% on customer 

satisfaction. Customer satisfaction is assessed through the 

self-service electronic monitoring devices located in each 

Provincial Office. 

Grade 2 to 9 Registration

The cidb maintained efficient processing of contractor 

applications. There were 20,107 Grade 2 to 9 applications 

received during Financial Year 2014/15. These were made up 

of new applications, upgrades, three years renewals, annual 

updates and other types of applications. At least 84% of received 

applications were processed within a period of 21 working days. 

A total of 4,068 contractor registration queries were received and 

were all administered within two working days.

One of the key initiatives which contributed to the 

achievement  of targets is the proactive business process 

management (BPM) which enables the cidb to balance 
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the workload across Head Office and the nine provincial 

offices. To determine the optimal allocation of resources 

throughout the provinces the BPM team conducted an 

assessment of resources required to process applications. 

The recommendations have served as input to the 2015/16 

cidb Annual Performance Plan. 

Future Plans

Plans are in place to extend the existing technology platform 

to cater for online contractor registration service. This is 

an exciting development in the evolution of the Register 

of Contractors. During Financial Year 2015/16 the cidb will 

finalise the relevant technical specifications to pave the way 

for development. It is envisaged that implementation will 

commence on 1 April 2016. This will make registration more 

convenient to contractors and will reduce the time required 

for processing of registrations. It will also have a positive 

impact on cidb resource utilisation.

Investigations and Formal 
Enquiries 

During Financial Year 2014/15 the cidb conducted 

investigations into reported cases of transgressions of CID 

Regulations by contractors. These varied from allegations of 

fraudulent tax clearance certificates, falsified track records 

and fraudulent financial statements submitted to the cidb for 

grading. Table 4 below shows the number of investigations 

conducted per province: 

Table 4: Provincial statistics on investigations conducted during the period under review 

Period Statistics per Province

Total April 2014 - March 2015 GP MP NW KZN LP NC FS EC WC

Tax Clearance Certificates   1     1

Track Records 10  1 1 7 1     19

Financial Statements  1   1     2

 Collusion

The investigation into the case of fifteen construction 

companies found guilty of collusive behaviour in terms of 

section 4(1)(b) of the Competition Act, 1998 (Act No. 89 

of 1998) was concluded. Formal charges were issued and 

the companies have been summoned for a formal inquiry, in 

terms of the CID Regulations of 2004, as amended. The cidb 

has received notice of application by some of the 15 firms, to 

have the court set aside the cidb regulations. The cidb and 

the Department of Public Works are defending the challenge 

to the cidb’s regulations.

Regulation Amendments 

The cidb initiated the process to interrogate Part 5 of the 

CID Regulations in order to strengthen the regulatory 

framework, improve its implementation and strengthen the 

role of investigating officers. There has also been further 

consultation on revision and improvement of the cidb 

Standard for Uniformity on Construction Procurement. 

There was focus on Phase 2 and 3 of amendments to the CID 

Regulations. The aim is to have the amendments published 

for comment during the 2015/16 Financial Year. Among the 

changes envisaged is introduction of construction linked 

requirements for registration in Grade 1, registration of 

subcontractors, making the BBBEE rating a requirement for 

registration, revision of tender value limits and registration 

fees. 
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2. MONITORING 
PERFORMANCE OF 

THE CONSTRUCTION 
INDUSTRY
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The cidb has developed a suite of products to monitor and 

evaluate the performance of the industry and to support 

contractor development, including:

•  sector specific status reports;

•  the cidb Construction Industry Indicators (CIIs);

•  the cidb Construction Monitor; 

•  the cidb SME Business Conditions Survey; and

•  the cidb Compliance Monitor.

Collectively, these products provide a base for a detailed 

understanding of the industry by the cidb.

Construction Monitor: 
Transformation

The cidb Construction Monitor: Transformation Report 

presents an assessment of the state of transformation of 

the construction industry, with a focus on the consulting 

engineering (or professional service providers) and 

contracting sectors. The Report draws largely on information 

obtained from the cidb Register of Contractors, the cidb 

Register of Projects, the Consulting Engineers South Africa 

(CESA) Bi-Annual Economic and Capacity Survey and the 

Construction Sector Charter Council (CSCC) Baseline Report 

April 2014.

Consulting Engineering: An assessment of data obtained 

from CESA membership data (as of end-December 2014) 

shows that only around 12% of consulting engineering 

companies have black-ownership exceeding 50%. The CESA 

data also shows that the percentage of black executives 

has increased from around 25% in 2006 to 36% in 2014, 

and that there has been a slight increase in performance on 

management control in large BEPs over the period from 2009 

to 2013 from around 65% to 75% of the compliance target.
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Similar results are obtained from the 2014 Construction 

Sector Charter Council (CSCC) Baseline Report, which shows 

that while a sustained increase in black-ownership was 

achieved over the period 2009 to 2013, the overall black-

ownership of built environment professionals remains low. 

Contractors: Around 95% of cidb registered small general 

building and civil engineering contractors (Grades 2 to 4) 

are black-owned, while only around 70% of all medium to 

large contractors (Grades 7 and 8) are black-owned. Black-

ownership of large contractors (Grade 9) is significantly 

lower, around 25% to 30%. Furthermore, black-ownership of 

mechanical, electrical and specialist engineering contractors 

is lower than that for general building and civil engineering.

On average, around 50% of all small general building and civil 

engineering contractors have women-ownership exceeding 

30%, and only around 30% of medium to large contractors 

(Grade 7 and 8) are woman-owned. Woman-ownership of 

Grade 9 contractors is significantly lower, around 7%.

Overall, black ownership representation has not increased 

significantly over the past three years. While positive 

trends in the changes of ownership and transformation 

in the construction industry are being observed, the 

pace of transformation is slow, especially with the larger 

organisations.

Source: CESA Membership Database, www.cesa.co.za, December 2014

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50%Black-Ownership (>50%): December 2014

Size/Turnover %

Large (>R35m pa) 5%

Medium (R11,5m to 35m pa) 14%

Small (<R11,5m pa) 12%

Total 12%

Large (>R35m pa)

Medium (R11,5m to 35m pa)

Small (<R11,5m pa)

Percentage of consulting companies by turnover with black ownership exceeding 50%

Source: cidb Construction Registers

Grade Number % Distribution
GB

9 10 30%
7 and 8 269 71%
5 and 6 1 023 88%
2 to 4 2 931 95%
Total 4 233 86%

CE
9 13 24%

7 and 8 320 67%
5 and 6 1 092 84%
2 to 4 2 644 94%
Total 4 069 88%

GB

CE

9

7 and 8

5 and 6

2 to 4

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Percentage of contractors by grade with black ownership exceeding 50%

The Construction Monitor shows that around 70% to 90% of public sector contracts by value have been awarded to black-owned 

contractors in Grades 2 to 8 in general building. This shows the impact of public sector policies to enhance transformation. In 

civil engineering, around 80% of contract awards by Rand value have been awarded to small- to medium sized (Grades 2 to 6) 

black-owned contractors, but only about 60% of the contract awards by Rand value have been awarded to black-owned medium 

to large contractors (Grades 7 and 8).
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Construction Industry 
Indicators (CIIs)

The cidb Construction Industry Indicators (CIIs) are measures 

of the performance of the industry, focusing on perceptions 

of clients, the client’s agent / consultant and contractors. 

The CIIs are captured annually. 

The 2014 CIIs show that clients are not satisfied with the 

performance of contractors on 16% of the work carried out. 

This shows a 4% decrease in client satisfaction from 12% 

in 2013. According to the CIIs, the level of client’s as well 

as contractor’s dissatisfaction is higher in large projects, 

increasing with the size of the project. 

Around 18% of work carried out had levels of defects which 

are regarded as inappropriate. This reflects a slight decrease 

compared to the 2013 survey results.

Client dissatisfaction is most often a result of appointing a 

contractor that is not suitable for the work. The cidb advocates 

that functionality should be taken into consideration when 

evaluating Government tenders, taking into consideration the 

bidder’s technical capacity and ability to execute a contract. 

Around 85% of South Africa’s construction tenders are in fact 

evaluated on the basis of functionality, but according to the 

CIIs report, the recommendations of the tender committee 

were overruled in the award of around 12% of public sector 

projects, with overruling of tender recommendations highest 

in Limpopo. 

Contractors were not satisfied with the performance of the 

client on around 20% of the work surveyed. This included 

dissatisfaction with the quality of tender documents and 

specifications, management of variation orders, and delayed 

payments. 

Around 40% of payments to contractors were made in 30 

days or longer after invoicing. The typical contractual period 

for payment is 30 days. Delayed payments are one of the 

biggest challenges facing the contracting sector and in 

particular, the small and medium sized contractors. It often 

results in the bankruptcy of a contractor.

Source: cidb Construction Registers
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Contractor Registrations

Notwithstanding the difficult business conditions being 

experienced by contractors, the cidb continues to observe 

a growth in the number of contractor registrations. Of 

particular interest has been the growth in Grades 7 and 

8, which has shown year-on-year growth rates in excess 

of 30%. This has been due largely to the 2013 regulation 

amendments which have resulted in contractor upgrades, 

new entrants and contractors retaining their existing grades.  

Constraints to Business Growth; % Respondents Rating (Weighted)
Civil Engineering
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SME Business Conditions 
Survey Report

The sustainability and development of contractors is inextricably 

linked to the business conditions experienced by contractors, 

including access to work opportunities, tendering competition, 

access to credit and access to skills. The cidb closely monitors 

the business conditions experienced by contractors through 

the quarterly cidb SME Business Conditions Survey in order to 

identify possible areas of intervention. 

The constraints to business growth experienced by civil 

engineering (CE) contractors since the inception of the 

survey in 2008 are shown below. The largest constraint to 

growth remains insufficient construction demand, followed 

by access to skilled labour and access to credit. 

While there has been some improvement in access to work 

opportunities since 2010 quarter 3, access to credit has 

noticeably increased as a constraint in the civil engineering 

sector since 2014 Quarter 4.
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Table 5: Total Number of Registrations per grade as at 31 March 2015

Grade Tender Value Limit (R)
Class of Works

CE EB EP GB ME SW Total

1 200,000 22370 1516 5451 48694 5453 18011 101495

2 500,000 1548 161 166 2064 284 557 4780

3 2,000,000 816 55 100 600 109 196 1876

4 4,000,000 875 108 229 805 168 183 2368

5 6,500,000 689 122 223 597 165 196 1992

6 13,000,000 760 54 175 647 129 106 1871

7 40,000,000 401 36 70 312 51 57 927

8 130,000,000 142 10 36 112 39 39 378

9   >130,000,000 67 2 24 41 27 24 185

Total 27668 2064 6474 53872 6425 19369 115872

CE – Civil Engineering Works     EB – Electrical Engineering Works - Building     EP – Electrical Engineering Works- Infrastructure

GB – General Building Works     ME – Mechanical Engineering Works     SW – Special Works    

Energy Performance 
Certificates

The Department of Public Works submitted a request to the 

South African Bureau of Standards (SABS) in August 2012 for 

SABS to develop a national standard for energy performance 

certificates for buildings. The cidb has contributed extensively 

to the development of this standard, which was published in 

January 2015. The SANS 1544 (2014) Energy Performance 

Certificates for Buildings sets the requirements for producing 

energy performance certificates (EPCs). The EPCs compare 

the energy performance of a building to the maximum 

energy consumption values contained in SANS 10400-XA 

(2011) for Application of the National Building Regulations, 

Environmental Sustainability and Energy Usage in Buildings. 

The cidb continues to work with the Department of Public 

Works and the Department of Energy in facilitating the 

development of training material and accreditation systems 

for EPCs on public buildings. It is government’s intent that 

buildings that are owned or leased by government and with 

occupancy classes covered by SANS 1544 will be required to 

display an EPC. 

Best Practice Schemes 
for Industry Performance 
Improvement

The cidb Best Practice Project Assessment 
Scheme

The cidb Act mandates the Board to establish a Best Practice 

Project Assessment Scheme based on identified best practices. 

All construction contracts above a prescribed tender value will 

be subject to an assessment of compliance with best practice 

standards and guidelines published by the Board.

In consultation with stakeholders the following best practices 

have been developed and published, as part of the Project 

Assessment Scheme: 

•  cidb Standard for Indirect Targeting for Enterprise 

Development (published in gazette number 36190 of 

February 2013);

•  cidb Standard for Developing Skills through 

Infrastructure Contracts (published in gazette number 

36760 of August 2013);

•  cidb Standard for Contractor Performance Reports for 

use on Construction Works Contracts (Grades 2 to 9) 

(published in gazette number 36760 of August 2013); and

•  cidb Best Practice: Green Building Certification 

(published in gazette 34158 of 1 April 2011).



cidb ANNUAL REPORT 2014 | 2015

0
2
6

In addition, the cidb has developed the following draft best 

practices:

•  cidb Standard for Health and Safety Management Plans; 

and

•  cidb Best Practice: Minimum Requirements for Engaging 

Subcontractors on Construction Works Contracts.

In time these best practices, the cidb Project Assessment 

Scheme and the Best Practice Fee will be made mandatory 

through regulations. 

The cidb Best Practice Fee

The publication in Government Gazette 37903 of August 2014, 

of the cidb Best Practice Fee was a significant step towards 

making application of the cidb standards mandatory.  A 

number of stakeholders have submitted comments on the 

proposed cidb Best Practice Fee, and follow-up consultations 

with select stakeholders have taken place during the Financial 

Year. The cidb will submit the final recommendations on the 

proposed cidb Best Practice Fee together with proposed 

regulation amendments in 2015. This will pave the way for 

mandatory application of the best practices. Clients are 

however, encouraged to adopt these practices voluntarily.

The cidb Best Practice Contractor Recognition 
Scheme

The cidb Act mandates the Board to establish a Best Practice 

Contractor Recognition Scheme which:

a)  enables organs of state to manage risk on complex 

contracting strategies; and

b)  promotes contractor development in relation to best 

practice standards and guidelines developed by the 

Board.

To date, the following best practices developed in consultation 

with stakeholders, have been published or are in draft form:

•  cidb Standard for Contractor Performance Reports for 

use on Construction Works Contracts (Grades 2 to 9) 

(published in gazette number 36760 of August 2013);

•  cidb Competence Standard for Contractors (draft);

•  cidb Best Practice: Construction Management Systems 

(draft); and

•  cidb Best Practice: Specification for a Fraud and 

Corruption Management System (draft).

Assessment of Prior Learning

The draft cidb Competence Standard for Contractors 

establishes minimum acceptable competencies and experience 

necessary for running a contracting enterprise and for 

supervising building and construction works within the fields 

of:

•  business management; and

•  building and construction management (operational and 

supervision).

The draft Standard has been incorporated into the NCDP 

Guidelines for Implementing Contractor Development 

Programmes as a training requirement.

Percentage Contractors Assessed as Being Competent in Business Management; Grade 2 to 4 Contractors
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The cidb intends to recognise the minimum formal 

qualifications and experience of contractors that meet the 

competence requirements set out in the Standard. To this 

effect it has established a system for the ‘assessment of prior 

learning’ (APL) for contractors who have knowledge, skills 

and experience but who do not have the minimum formal 

qualifications required by the Competence Standard. 

The cidb APL system was piloted amongst 80 Grade 2 to 4 

contractors in 2014.  Many of the contractors assessed were 

registered with contractor development programmes. The 

pilot confirmed the robustness of the cidb APL system. It also 

highlighted the common areas of weakness demonstrated 

by Grade 2 to 4 contractors, and their developmental needs, 

particularly in financial management. 

The Register of Professional 
Service Providers and the PSP 
Recognition Scheme

The CIDB Act provides for the cidb to “establish and 

maintain a register of suppliers, manufacturers or service 

providers in the construction industry”. In line with this 

requirement the cidb has started the process to develop 

the Register of Professional Service Providers which will 

categorise professional service providers (PSPs) in a manner 

that facilitates public sector procurement and promotes the 

development of professional service providers. 

The Register is intended to categorise professional service 

providers in terms of professional service disciplines and 

grades. Registration requirements could include:

a) registration as a legal entity;

b) minimum financially capability requirements;

c)  minimum technical capability requirements in terms 

of the number of registered professionals in their 

employment relevant to the professional service 

discipline applied for;

d) minimum track record requirements;

e)  minimum requirements for the professional registration 

of directors or of equity holders; and

f) minimum professional indemnity requirements.

The cidb Register of Professional Service Providers will 

register legal entities (or companies), and not individuals.

Consultation with client departments, professional 

associations and the built environment councils on draft 

registration criteria were initiated in 2014.

The cidb also initiated the development of the Professional 

Service Providers Recognition Scheme in 2014 which will:

•  enable organs of state to manage risk on complex 

contracting strategies; and

•  promote the development of professional service 

providers in relation to best practice standards and 

guidelines developed by the Board.

The cidb has consulted on the following draft standards 

intended to form part of the PSP Recognition Scheme:

•  cidb Standard for Professional Service Provider 

Performance Reports for Professional Services in 

Engineering and Construction Works;

•  cidb Best Practice: Management Systems; and

•  cidb Best Practice: Membership of Voluntary Associations.

It is envisaged that the cidb Register of Professional Service 

Providers and the PSP Recognition Scheme could be launched 

in 2016.
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3. STAKEHOLDER 
ENGAGEMENTS
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Promoting Contractor 
Development 

During the period under review the cidb engaged with 

various stakeholders to strengthen opportunities for 

development of emerging enterprises. These included client 

departments at national, provincial and local government as 

well as contractor development agencies.

The cidb capacitated these stakeholders on how, among 

others, to apply cidb guidelines to achieve contractor 

development and discussed issues of aligning existing and 

new contractor development programmes to the National 

Contractor Development Programme (NCDP). 

Collaboration with international bodies

The cidb hosted a delegation of the Zambia National 

Council for Construction. The two organisations exchanged 

information on construction industry development 

challenges and opportunities and explored opportunities for 

collaboration. 

Doctoral Workshop 

The University of Cape Town hosted the third cidb Doctoral 

Workshop on 4 February 2015. The Workshop is organised 

biannually in partnership with schools of construction 

management and economics to provide contributions, 

constructive criticism and meaningful feedback to doctoral 

students undertaking research with a focus on construction 

industry development. The workshop provides students 

with an opportunity to present their research proposals to 

academics and peers in order to enhance their on-going 

research and assists them to develop presentation skills. 

It is a cidb contribution to high level academic and human 

resource development. The 2015 workshop was attended 

by academics and PhD students from the University of 

Cape Town, University of the Witwatersrand, University of 

Johannesburg, Central University of Technology and Cape 

Peninsula University of Technology. 
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4. INDEPENDENT FIVE 
YEAR REVIEW
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The cidb Act mandates the cidb to facilitate an independent 

review of its activities in relation to its goals and objects, at 

least once every five years. Reviews are conducted by a panel 

appointed by the Minister of Public Works. The 2nd cidb 5 

Year Review took place in September 2014 and canvassed 

inputs from the cidb, internal and external stakeholders as 

well as the Department of Public Works.

The mandate of the Panel was to evaluate the:

•  performance, effectiveness and impact of the cidb, its 

programmes and activities; 

•  current relevance of the cidb’s mandate and objects; 

•  sufficiency of the cidb resources, capacity and support; 

•  cidb’s strategic and business plans; and 

•  strategic role of the cidb in the South African economy. 

In summary the Review Panel found that:

Stakeholders are generally appreciative and supportive of the 

role of the cidb in the industry. The cidb is well regarded 

amongst stakeholders, and is seen as providing valuable 

guidance, leadership and direction to the industry. Its outputs 

are perceived as useful and relevant.

However, a common theme is that the cidb tends to place 

more emphasis on its role as an industry regulator rather 

than its leadership role. In addition, it often does not 

proactively monitor compliance to its prescripts, guidelines 

and regulations and usually reacts when issues are brought 

to its notice.

 

More detailed recommendations were provided by the 

Review Panel, and the recommendations of the Five-Year 

Review have been incorporated into the cidb’s 2015/16 

Strategic Plan.
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5.  CORPORATE 
SERVICES REPORT
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The main purpose of Corporate Services is to provide reliable, 

efficient and effective support services to all departments 

within cidb in order to carry the organisation’s strategic 

objectives and mandate. 

Corporate Services comprises of Human Resources (HR), 

Supply Chain Management (SCM), Finance, Information 

Technology (IT) and Facilities. These key support services 

provide the enabling environment for core programmes 

to achieve their strategic objectives. They also play a 

fundamental role in ensuring that the entity complies with 

relevant laws and regulations. The specific roles that each 

perform are outlined below:

Supply Chain 

Supply Chain Management caters for demand management 

and the acquisition of goods and services.

cidb maintains an efficient, effective and transparent supply 

chain management practice, in compliance with the Public 

Finance Management Act and Treasury Regulations.

Procurement plans were closely monitored during the 

period under review, so as to ensure timely acquisition of 

goods and services. The organisation updated the service 

provider database regularly. Quotations were sourced from 

this database. In addition, bid committees were maintained. 

These committees ensure the administration of various needs 

for bid processing.

Finance

The Finance Unit is responsible for internal control and 

the completion of financial reports as follows: revenue 

management, expenditure control, timely payment of 

service providers, fixed assets, debtors’ management and the 

submission of statutory returns.
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During the 2014/15 Financial Year, service providers were 

paid within 30 days of receipt of invoices, with the exception 

of those that resulted in transaction queries. Debtors’ 

management was effectively executed through monthly 

reconciliation and collections. 

As part of overseeing the statutory and regulatory 

compliance including financial management, quarterly 

performance and financial reports were prepared and 

submitted to the Department of Public Works, as per the 

standing arrangement. Such reporting ensures absolute 

accountability on the part of cidb and provides for an 

effective monitoring system designed to ensure prudent and 

efficient management of finances.

The cidb obtained an unqualified audit report for the 2014/15 

Financial Year. This is due, in part, to the efficient compilation 

of monthly reconciliations as an effective means of internal 

control. 

Information Technology 

Information Technology (IT) remained a top priority for the 

organisation, in terms of good governance. Priority areas 

for improvement were identified as part of the annual risk 

assessment. 

Facilities

An organisation-wide records management project was 

undertaken to improve records keeping and towards 

centralisation of facilities management, during the year under 

review. Departmental representatives were also trained in 

order to serve as champions for records management. 

Human Resources

The organisation regards staff as the most important 

strategic asset. Recruitment, training and retention of staff 

is therefore undertaken in such a manner as to enhance the 

overall performance of the cidb. Recruitment is initiated by 

way of advertising, shortlisting of candidates, interviews and 

competency assessments.

Training was aligned to personal development plans and 

needs of individual staff members, as outlined in their annual 

performance agreements.

Staff retention is achieved by way of organisation’s pay 

progression process. The cidb offers market-related 

remuneration packages based on benchmarks, in order to 

maintain competitiveness. The organisation also subscribes 

to a comprehensive wellness programme, which is viewed as 

a significant contributor to improving productivity. 

During the review period, a number of positions were filled, 

whilst the cidb has maintained a low turnover rate during 

the year. 

Various policies and procedures underwent review and by 

the end of 2014/15 Financial Year, a number of these policies 

were at various stages of completion. 

National Education, Health 
and Allied Workers’ Union 
Membership

The National Education, Health and Allied Workers’ Union 

(NEHAWU) remains the only recognised Union in the cidb 

as per the recognition agreement entered into in May 2012. 

In May 2014 Management and NEHAWU entered into a 

four year salary and substantive agreement and signed an 

addendum to the Recognition Agreement which became 

effective retrospectively on 1 April 2014. The purpose of the 

addendum was to re-define the bargaining unit following the 

implementation of the Patterson Job Grading System. The 

Agreement addresses amongst others, the following matters 

as they pertain to members of the bargaining unit:

•  A 13th cheque;

•  Introduction of a provident fund incentive;

•  Review of a performance bonus; and

•  Job profile disparities and remuneration anomalies.

 

Table 6: NEHAWU Membership Statistics

Number of Unionised Employees 139

Union Representation Percentage 76%

Culture study

A culture study was conducted to assess the extent to which 

the cidb culture supports organisational capability to deliver 

on its mandate. The aim was to identify areas of concern as 

well as interventions required for turn-around. Overall the 

study found that the cidb needs to do much more to improve 

the culture and capability of the organisation to fulfill its 

mandate effectively. This was based on an assessment of 15 

dimensions that were identified as key.



cidb ANNUAL REPORT 2014 | 2015

0
3
5

The critical top six areas of concern according to the study 

results were: 

•  Remuneration; 

•  Learning and development; 

•  Management style and power distance;

•  Service orientation;

•  Innovation; and

•  Recognition and appreciation.

Management has developed a plan of action to address the 

various issues highlighted by the study findings. 

Table 7: New Recruits and Terminations

Position Department Date Vacated Date Filled

Chief Executive Officer CEO’s Office February 2015 Vacant

Project Manager – CEO’s Office CEO’s Office May 2014 Vacant

Board Secretariat CEO’s Office August 2013 Outsourced

Senior SCM Practitioner Corporate Services February 2015 Vacant

SCM Officer Corporate Services April 2014 December 2014

Payroll Officer Corporate Services May 2013 October 2014

Front Desk Support Corporate Services September 2012 June 2014

Desktop Support Engineer Corporate Services New July 2014

Admin Clerk Registers Service September 2014 June 2015

Call Centre Agent Registers Service August 2014 Vacant

Admin Clerk Registers Service September 2014 June 2015

Assessment Review Registers Service New July 2014

Assessor Registers Service New July 2014

Assessor Registers Service New July 2014

Manager: Infrastructure Delivery Procurement and Delivery March 2014 October 2014

Project Assistant Procurement and Delivery New December 2014

Project Manager: EC Provincial Offices and CD March 2015 Vacant

Help-Desk Support: MP Provincial Offices and CD October 2014 November 2014

Help-Desk Support: MP Provincial Offices and CD July 2014 Vacant

Provincial Manager: NW Provincial Offices and CD August 2014 In Progress

Data Capturer: GP Provincial Offices and CD July 2014 April 2015

Data Capturer: EC Provincial Offices and CD June 2014 August 2014

Provincial Manager: MP Provincial Offices and CD September 2013 October 2014

Business Administrator: NC Provincial Offices and CD New September 2014

National Project Manager Provincial Offices and CD June 2014 Vacant

Table 8: Vacancies 

Department
Vacancies
(Funded)

CEO’s Office 4

Corporate Services 6

Registration Services 4

Industry Performance 1

Provincial Offices and Contractor Development 5
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Table 9: Occupational Levels 

Occupational Levels
 Male Female

 Foreign 
Nationals Total

A C I W A C I W Male Female

Top management 0 0 2 1 1 0 1 0 0 0 5

Senior management 7 1 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 12

Professionally qualified, 
experienced specialists and 
mid-management

13 1 2 1 6 0 0 1 0 0 24

Skilled technical and 
academically qualified 

13 0 1 0 22 2 0 1 0 1 40

Semi-skilled and 
discretionary decision-
making

28 2 1 1 47 6 1 3 0 2 91

Unskilled and defined 
decision- making

0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 2

Total Permanent 61 5 5 3 82 8 2 5 0 3 174

Total Fixed-Term Contract 1 0 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 9

Employees with disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Temporary employees 0 1 0 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 7

Grand Total 64 5 6 3 94 8 2 5 0 3 190

Percentage (%) 34 3 3 1.5 49 4 1 3 0 1.5 100% 

A – African     C – Coloured     I – Indian     W – White

Table 10: Summary Staff Breakdown

No. of Staff Representative %

Males 78 41%

Females 112 59%

People with disability 0 0%

Total staff 190 100%

Table 11: Staff Complement                             

Staff complement
Period ended 

31 March 2015

Permanent Staff 174

Full Time Contract Staff 9

Temporary staff 7

Total 190
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Employee relations

Table 12: Misconduct and Disciplinary Actions:

Nature of Disciplinary Action Number

Verbal Warning 0

Written Warning 0

Final Written Warning 0

Dismissal 1

Wellness at cidb

The cidb continued to render employee wellness services to staff. The program aims to assist staff to achieve a healthy work-life 

balance and is available to all staff and their immediate family members. The cidb Employee Wellness Programme consists of 

independent, professional counseling and advisory services.
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Annual Financial Statements 
for the year ended 31 March 2015

Statement of Responsibility

The Accounting Authority is required by the Public Finance 

Management Act (Act 1 of 1999) (PFMA), to maintain 

adequate accounting records and is responsible for the 

content and integrity of the Annual Financial Statements and 

related financial information included in this report. It is the 

responsibility of the Accounting Authority to ensure that the 

Annual Financial Statements fairly present the state of affairs 

of cidb as at the end of the Financial Year and the results 

of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended. 

The Auditor- General South Africa is engaged to express an 

independent opinion on the Annual Financial Statements 

and given unrestricted access to all financial records and 

related data.

The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared 

in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised 

Accounting Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, 

guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards 

Board.

The Annual Financial Statements are based upon appropriate 

accounting policies consistently applied and supported by 

reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.

The Accounting Authority acknowledges that it is ultimately 

responsible for the system of internal financial control established 

by cidb and place considerable importance on maintaining a 

strong control environment. To enable the Accounting Authority 

to meet these responsibilities, the Accounting Authority sets 

standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error 

or deficit in a cost effective manner.

The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities 

within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting 

procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure 

an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored 

throughout cidb and all employees are required to maintain 

the highest ethical standards in ensuring cidb’s business is 

conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is 

above reproach. The focus of risk management in cidb is on 

identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known 

forms of risk across cidb. While operating risk cannot be 

fully eliminated, cidb endeavours to minimise it by ensuring 

that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical 

behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined 

procedures and constraints.

The Accounting Authority is of the opinion, based on the 

information and explanations given by management, that 

the system of internal control provides reasonable assurance 

that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation 

of the Annual Financial Statements. However, any system of 

internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not 

absolute, assurance against material misstatement or deficit.

The Accounting Authority has reviewed cidb’s cash flow 

forecast for the year ending at 31 March 2016 and, in the 

light of this review and the current financial position, the 

Accounting Authority is satisfied that cidb has access to 

adequate resources to continue in operational existence for 

the foreseeable future.

The cidb is largely dependent on the Department of Public 

Works (DPW) for continued funding of operations. The 

Annual Financial Statements are prepared on the basis that 

cidb is a going concern and that the Department of Public 

Works (DPW) has neither the intention nor the need to 

liquidate or curtail materially the scale of cidb.

The Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 

31 March 2015, set out on page 52 to 89, which have been 

prepared on the going concern basis, were approved by 

the Accounting Authority in terms of section 51(1)(f) of the 

Public Finance Management Act No.1 of 1999, as amended 

and are signed on its behalf by:

Inba Thumbiran 

Acting Chief Executive Officer

Lindelwa T. Myataza

Chairperson: cidb Board

31 July 2015
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Corporate Governance Report

Corporate Governance expresses the processes and systems 

by which the corporates are directed, controlled and held 

to account. The cidb strives to achieve high standards of 

good governance by embracing the four core values that 

underpin good governance that is: fairness, accountability, 

transparency and responsibility. In ensuring compliance 

to the principles of governance, a compliance programme 

has been put in place in cidb to assess adherence to the 

principles of good governance and to identify areas that 

require improvements on a regular basis.

1. Accounting Authority

The Minister is responsible to appoint the Board at an interval 

of three years as per the CIDB Act, 2000. The Minister 

appointed 13 Board members as defined in the CIDB Act. As 

at 31 March 2015, the cidb had 12 Board members due to the 

passing away of one Board member in December 2014. The 

Board is the Accounting Authority in terms of the PFMA and 

is obliged to comply with the fiduciary duties as set out in the 

PFMA. The Board has a collective responsibility to provide 

effective corporate governance and strategic directions that 

involves adhering to the principle of good governance, risk 

management and internal controls as stipulated in the PFMA, 

Treasury Regulation and King III report. 

The role of the Board is as follows:

•  Exercise leadership, enterprise, integrity and judgment 

in directing the Board to achieve continuing prosperity 

and to act in the best interests of the Board while 

respecting the principles of transparency and 

accountability;

•  Determining the Board’s values and the strategy 

designed to achieve the Board’s purpose;

•  Retaining full and effective control of the Board and 

monitoring the cidb in implementing Board plans and 

strategies;

•  Monitoring and evaluating the implementation 

of strategies, policies, procedures, processes, 

management performance criteria and business plans;

•  Formulating, monitoring and reviewing corporate 

strategy, major plans of action, financial and risk 

management and internal control policies, appropriate 

procurement and provisioning systems, communications 

policy, annual budgets and business plans;

•  Ensuring that the cidb complies with all relevant 

laws, regulations, government policies and codes 

of best business practice and communicates with 

its shareholder and relevant stakeholders openly, 

transparently and promptly with substance prevailing 

over form;

•  Identifying the key risk areas and key performance 

indicators of the Board, based on both financial and 

non-financial aspects such as the socio-political and 

politico-economic expectations of the shareholder;

•  Ensuring that technology and systems used in the 

Board are adequate for the proper functioning of the 

Board through the most efficient and cost-effective 

use of its assets, processes and human resources;

•  Ensuring that the shareholder’s performance objectives 

are achieved and that same can be measured in terms 

of performance of the Board;

•  Developing a clear definition of the levels of materiality 

or sensitivity to determine the scope and delegation of 

authority and ensure that the Board reserves specific 

powers and authority for itself. All delegated authority 

shall be in writing and shall be regularly evaluated;

•  Ensuring that Board members are granted unrestricted 

access to accurate, relevant and timely information on 

the Board and acting on a fully informed basis, in the 

utmost good faith, with care, skill and diligence and in 

the best interests of the Board, while taking the interests 

of the shareholder and other stakeholders into account;

•  Managing potential conflicts of interest between 

the CEO, Board members and the shareholder and 

ensuring that any such conflicts of interest, or of 

independence, are regularly and expeditiously dealt 

with and resolved; and

•  Maintaining the highest standards of probity, integrity, 

responsibility and accountability and ensuring that a 

fair balance is found between conforming to corporate 

governance principles and the performance of the Board.

Furthermore, a Board Charter exists and is reviewed on a 

regular basis. 
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2. Governance

Corporate Governance expresses the processes and systems 

by which the cidb is directed, controlled and held to account. 

The cidb strives to achieve the highest standards of good 

governance by embracing and adhering to the legislative 

requirement, PFMA and adopting the principles of good 

governance as contained in the King III report. 

3. Portfolio Committee

The Portfolio Committee is responsible for exercising 

oversight over the service delivery of cidb which includes 

reviewing the financial and non-financial of cidb as it is 

contained in the Strategic and Annual Performance Plan. The 

following meetings were held with the portfolio committee 

during the Financial Year:

Date of 

meeting
Purpose

28 August 2014
Reviewing of 2013/14 

Annual Report 

25 March 2015
Reviewing of 2015/16 Strategic 

and Annual Performance Plan

4. Executive Authority

The Minister of Public Works (DPW) is the Executive Authority 

of cidb and plays a vital role in ensuring that the cidb operates 

within its legislative mandate. The Minister has been given 

the power to appoint and dismiss the Board of cidb. On 

an on-going basis, the Minister monitors and evaluates 

the performance of cidb through reports and interactions. 

During the year the cidb has submitted the following reports 

in compliance with the PFMA and Framework for Managing 

Programme Performance Information. 

Date of 

submission
Type of reports

30 April 2014
Fourth Quarter Performance report 

2013/14

30 July 2014
First Quarter Performance Report – 

2014/15

31 August 2014
First Draft Strategic and Annual 

Performance Plan

31 October 2014
Second Quarter Performance 

Report – 2014/15

30 November 

2014

Second Draft Strategic and Annual 

Performance Plan

30 January 2015

Third Quarter Performance report – 

2014/15

Final Strategic and Annual 

Performance Plan

The following commentaries were issued on the governance 

matters:

•  Governance parameters between Board and the 

Executive (Board Meetings).

•  Pending lease agreement between cidb and SABS 

(landlord).

5. Risk Management

The oversight responsibility over the implementation of 

cidb’s risk management lies with the Accounting Authority 

that has delegated its responsibility to the Audit and Risk 

Committee. Therefore, the Audit and Risk Committee reports 

formally to the Accounting Authority in terms of cidb’s risk 

management process. The cidb’ Executive Committee (EXCO) 

is responsible for applying the risk management framework 

and techniques in their planning, operating and reporting 

activities. The cidb has identified all significant risks that may 

threaten the successful delivery of our mandate, mission and 

business objectives. These are documented in the corporate 

strategic register.



cidb ANNUAL REPORT 2014 | 2015

0
4
3

Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2015

The process followed by cidb in the risk assessment 

workshops is reflected below:

•  Identifying risks;

•  Assessing risks;

•  Prioritising risks;

•  Managing risks; and

•  Communicating and monitoring risks.

The Accounting Authority actively participates in risk 

and control monitoring and analysis by considering and 

reviewing the enterprise wide risk profile and management 

environment. Effective risk management is the key to cidb’s 

success.

6. Audit and Risk Committee

The role of the Committee is to provide an independent 

assurance and assistance to the Board on control, governance 

and risk management. The Committee provides the Board 

with prompt and constructive reports on its findings, 

especially when issues are identified that could present a 

material risk to the institution.

7. Internal Audit Function

The cidb has established the internal audit function; currently 

fully outsourced to the independent audit firms. The role of 

Internal Audit is to provide independent, objective assurance 

and consulting services designed to add value and improve 

the organisation’s operations. It assists the organisation 

accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined 

approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk 

management, control, and governance processes. Internal 

Audit conducts its work following a risk based approach in 

compliance with the Internal Audit Standards. The annual 

internal audit plan and the three year strategic rolling plan is 

approved by the Audit and Risk Committee.

8.  Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The cidb does not have dedicated compliance function; 

however system, process and policies are in place to provide the 

Board with assurance that all laws are being complied with. On-

going reviews are being performed by our internal and external 

auditors. The findings are reflected in the specific audit reports 

as and when issued at completion of audit assignments.

9. Fraud and Corruption

The cidb holds a zero tolerance towards fraud and corruption 

and all incidents and reasonable suspicions thereof, will be 

verified and investigated where appropriate. 

Appropriate legal recourse, to the full extent of the law, is 

taken against perpetrators, including:

•  Disciplinary action;

•  Institution of criminal proceedings;

•  Recovery of losses; and

• Civil litigation.

Anti-Fraud and Corruption policy is a document that has 

been developed to guide on fraud and corruption and 

furthermore, the cidb’s has implemented the fraud and ethics 

awareness on an annual basis. Anti-Fraud and corruption 

policy is considered effective as no incident of fraud were 

detected in the year under review. 

10.  Whistle-Blowing

The cidb subscribes to the duty of protection and to this 

extent has invested in an anonymous reporting facility 

“hotline”, enabling and empowering employees and other 

stakeholders (such as contractors) to dispose of their 

reporting duties, without fearing victimisation and retribution 

of any kind. This independently managed facility provides 

for a safe alternative to silence, and offers various reporting 

media. Anonymity is guaranteed, and the facility is managed 

in compliance with the Protected Disclosures Act, No. 26 of 

2000. Information on this reporting facility / Whistle Blowing 

hotline is available on the cidb website.
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11.  Code of Ethics

The cidb continually strives to improve the morals and ethics 

of both its organisational environment and its own conduct. 

The code of ethics was developed and communicated to all 

employees as guide.  

It is the responsibility of each employee to ensure that he/she:

•  Act within his/her powers and in the interests and for 

the benefit of the cidb.

•  Carry out his/her duties with the skill and care to 

be expected from persons of their knowledge and 

experience.

•  Ensure that his/her conduct is always based on 

honesty, fairness, transparency and integrity.

12.  Board Committees

The Board has established the committees that it has 

required within the Financial Year and delegated its power 

to those committees to assist it with the fulfilment of its 

responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of the cidb’s 

Board Charter. 

Audit and Risk Committee

L.L. Makibinyane (Chairperson)

N.C. Skeepers 

S.A. Mosai

H.L. Patel

S. Thomas (Resigned - 6 March 2015)

N. Mhlongo (Term ended – 31 March 2015)

NB: Two New Members were Appointed on 1 May 2015.

Remuneration Committee 

S.A. Mosai (Chairperson)

V.V. Sidzumo

N. Jacobs-Skweyiya (Deceased – December 2014)

NB: Composition of this Committee was Reviewed in the 

New Financial Year.

Social and Ethics Committee

N.S. Pandor (Chairperson)

S.M. Makhura

N. Maas

Construction Industry Transformation Committee

N. Jacobs-Skweyiya (Chairperson) 

(Deceased – December 2014)

S.M. Makhura

M. Fatyela-Lindie

G. Maduray

NB: Composition of this committee was reviewed in the new 

Financial Year

Construction Registers Services Committee 

G. Maduray (Chairperson)

L.L. Makibinyane

N.S. Pandor

N. Maas

M. Fatyela-Lindie

Decentralisation Committee

V.V. Sidzumo (Chairperson)

L.L. Makibinyane

N.C. Skeepers 

H.L. Patel

Even though the Construction Registers Services and 

Decentralisation Committees were established during 

the year under review, these committees had not had a 

meeting as at 31 March 2015. They were disbanded in the 

new Financial Year and the functions merged with other 

committees; more detail will be provided in the 2015/16 

Annual Report.
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Report of the Audit and Risk Committee

We are pleased to present our report for the Financial Year 

ended 31 March 2015.

Audit and Risk Committee Members and 
Attendance

The Audit and Risk Committee (ARC) was established during 

the Financial Year after a decision was taken to merge 

the two committees that were in existence.  The ARC 

members listed below met four times during the Financial 

Year, as specified in the charter. During the year, a special 

ARC meeting was convened for the purpose of finalising 

members’ responsibilities.

Name of Member
Number 

of meetings

Lefadi Makibinyane (Chairperson) 3

Sipho Mosai  (Board Member) 3

Hareesh Patel (Board Member) 3

Natalie Skeepers (Board Member) 2

Lwandile Kona (Board Member) 1

Marten Govender (Board Member) 1

Shelley Thomas  (Private) 5

Nala Mhlongo (Private) 3

Prior to the merger, the committee was called Audit 

Committee and was chaired by the Shelley Thomas until 

30 October 2014. Lefadi Makibinyane was appointed as 

Chairperson after the merger. Shelley Thomas resigned as a 

member of the ARC on 6 March 2015. Nala Mhlongo retired 

as a member on 31 March 2015. Marten Govender and 

Lwandile Kona were members that served from the previous 

Board. Their term ended in June 2014 when the term of the 

old Board expired. 

Audit and Risk Committee Responsibility

The Audit and Risk Committee report confirms compliance 

with its responsibilities as contained in the Treasury 

Regulations 27.1.7 and 27.1.10 (b) and (c) in terms of Public 

Finance Management Act. The Charter was revised to reflect 

the changes to the Committee and accordingly approved.

The Reporting on Performance Information

   
The Board has additional responsibility to ensure that it 

accurately reports on performance information. The ARC 

confirmed that they were satisfied with the reporting of 

the performance information throughout the year, through 

verification of an independent assessment by the Internal 

Auditors.

The Effectiveness of Internal Controls  

The internal controls of cidb were effectively managed 

throughout the Financial Year. The Office of the Auditor-

General and the Internal Audit team identified certain 

weaknesses in the controls which were brought to the 

attention of Management.

The ARC has exercised an oversight role over the reports that 

were prepared, audited and submitted in terms of PFMA and 

provided relevant inputs where required.

Internal Audit 

The cidb has adopted an outsourced model for the internal 

audit function. The ARC has reviewed and approved a 3-year 

coverage plan and is satisfied with the audit work that has 

been completed to date. 
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Evaluation of Financial Statements

•  Reviewed and discussed the audited Annual Financial 

Statements to be included in the Annual Report with 

the Auditor-General and Accounting Officer;

•  Reviewed the Auditor General’s management letter 

and management response thereto; and

•  Reviewed the accounting policies and procedures.

We concur and accept the Auditor–General conclusions 

on the Annual Financial Statements and are of the opinion 

that the audited Financial Statements be accepted and read 

together with the report of the Auditor-General.

Lefadi Makibinyane

Signed on behalf of the Audit and Risk Committee

Chairperson: Audit and Risk Committee

31 July 2015
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Report of the Auditor-General

Report of the Auditor-General to Parliament on 
the Construction Industry Development Board 

Report on the financial statements

Introduction

1.  I have audited the financial statements of the 

Construction Industry Development Board (cidb) set out 

on pages 52 to 89, which comprise the statement of 

financial position as at 31 March 2015, the statement 

of financial performance, statement of changes in net 

assets, and cash flow statement and statement of 

comparison of budget information with actual amounts 

for the year then ended, as well as the notes, comprising 

a summary of significant accounting policies and other 

explanatory information. 

Accounting authority’s responsibility for the 
financial statements

2.  The accounting authority is responsible for the 

preparation and fair presentation of these financial 

statements in accordance with the South African 

Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice 

(SA Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of the 

Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 

(Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA), and for such internal control 

as the accounting authority determines is necessary to 

enable the preparation of financial statements that are 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 

or error.

Auditor-General’s responsibility

3.  My responsibility is to express an opinion on these 

financial statements based on my audit. I conducted my 

audit in accordance with the International Standards on 

Auditing. Those standards require that I comply with 

ethical requirements, and plan and perform the audit to 

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 

statements are free from material misstatement.

4.  An audit involves performing procedures to obtain 

audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 

in the financial statements. The procedures selected 

depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 

the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 

error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 

considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 

preparation and fair presentation of the financial 

statements in order to design audit procedures that 

are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 

purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 

of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes 

evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 

made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 

presentation of the financial statements. 

5.  I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 

audit opinion.

Opinion 

6.  In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in 

all material respects, the financial position of the CIDB as 

at 31 March 2015 and its financial performance and cash 

flows for the year then ended, in accordance with the SA 

Standards of GRAP and the requirements of the PFMA.

Report on other legal and regulatory 
requirements

7.  In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 

2004 (Act No.25 of 2004) and the general notice issued 

in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report findings 

on the reported performance information against 

predetermined objectives for selected programmes 

presented in the annual performance report, 

compliance with legislation as well as internal control. 

The objective of my tests was to identify reportable 

findings as described under each subheading but not to 
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gather evidence to express assurance on these matters. 

Accordingly, I do not express an opinion or conclusion 

on these matters.

Predetermined objectives

8.  I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the 

usefulness and reliability of the reported performance 

information for the following selected programmes 

presented in the annual performance report of the 

public entity for the year ended 31 March 2015:

•  Programme 1: Construction register services (CRS) on 

pages 92 to 93

•  Programme 4: Provincial offices and contractor 

development (PCD): on pages 100 to 101

9.  I evaluated the reported performance information 

against the overall criteria of usefulness and reliability.

 

10.  I evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance 

information to determine whether it was presented in 

accordance with the National Treasury’s annual reporting 

principles and whether the reported performance was 

consistent with the planned programmes. I further 

performed tests to determine whether indicators 

and targets were well defined, verifiable, specific, 

measurable, time bound and relevant, as required 

by the National Treasury’s Framework for managing 

programme performance information (FMPPI).

11.  I assessed the reliability of the reported performance 

information to determine whether it was valid, accurate 

and complete.

12.  I did not identify any material findings on the usefulness 

and reliability of the reported performance information 

for  the following programmes:

•  Programme 1: Construction register services (CRS)

•  Programme 4: Provincial offices and contractor 

development (PCD)

Additional matters

13.  Although I identified no material findings on the 

usefulness and reliability of the reported performance 

information for the selected programmes, I draw 

attention to the following matters:

Achievement of planned targets

14.  Refer to the annual performance report on page 92 to 

93 and 100 to 101 for information on the achievement 

of the planned targets for the year.

Adjustment of material misstatements

15.  I identified material misstatements in the annual 

performance report submitted for auditing on the 

reported performance information for programme 

1: Construction register services. As management 

subsequently corrected the misstatements, I did not 

identify any material findings on the usefulness and 

reliability of the reported performance information.

Compliance with legislation

16.  I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the 

public entity had complied with applicable legislation 

regarding financial matters, financial management 

and other related matters. My findings on material 

compliance with specific matters in key legislation, as 

set out in the general notice issued in terms of the PAA, 

are as follows:

Expenditure management

17.  The accounting authority did not take effective steps 

to prevent irregular expenditure, as required by section 

51(1)(b)(ii) of the PFMA.
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Internal control 

18.  I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the 

financial statements, annual performance report and 

compliance with legislation. The matters reported below 

are limited to the significant internal control deficiencies 

that resulted in the findings on the annual performance 

report and the findings on compliance with legislation 

included in this report. 

Financial and performance management

19.  Management did not adequately monitor adherence with 

the requirements of Treasury regulations for deviation 

from supply chain management processes and, as a result, 

irregular expenditure was incurred.

Other reports

Investigations

20.  The CIDB instituted an investigation in relation to the 

registration of contractors at the CIDB. The investigation 

was still in progress at the date of this report.

Auditor-General

Brooklyn

31 July 2015
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The Construction Industry Development Board (cidb) is 

a statutory body listed as a Schedule 3A public entity 

established in terms of the cidb Act, 2000 to provide 

strategic leadership to stakeholders to stimulate sustainable 

growth, reform and improvement of the construction sector 

and the industry’s enhanced role in the country’s economy as 

well as regulate the industry. The cidb is under the Executive 

Authority of the Department of Public Works (DPW).

General Overview of the State of Affairs

For the Financial Year 2014/15, the cidb received a grant of 

R77 212 000.00 (2013/14: R72 361 000.00) from DPW. 

A further amount of R66 385 314.00 (2013/14: 

R59 562 652.00) was received in the form of registers’ 

revenue; as well as other income of R7 957 267.00 (2013/14: 

R5 529 104.00). Thus, the total income for the cidb was 

R151 554 581.00 (2013/14: R137 452 756.00). The net 

surplus for the Financial Year was R21 185 450.00 (2013/14: 

R12 977 243.00). After taking into account the opening 

accumulated surplus of R68 577 935.00, this has resulted in 

the increase of accumulated surplus to R89 763 384.00 at 

the end of the Financial Year.  

One new member of the Board, N. Jacobs-Skweyiya, passed 

away in December 2014 and as such, ceased to be a member 

of the Board during the period under review. The Late 

Ms Jacobs-Skweyiya has not yet been replaced. 

The Committees of the Board continued to play their 

oversight roles and are constituted as follows:

• Audit and Risk Committee;

• Remuneration Committee;

• Social and Ethics Committee; 

• Construction Industry Transformation Committee;

• Decentralisation Committee; and

• Construction Registers Services Committee.

The terms of reference of the Board Committees are detailed 

in their respective charters. The cidb’s performance plan was, 

to a large extent, implemented satisfactorily. Further details 

are contained under the section dealing with performance 

information.

Service Rendered by the cidb

The cidb is a statutory body listed as a Schedule 3A public 

entity established in terms of the cidb Act, 2000 to provide 

strategic leadership to stakeholders to stimulate sustainable 

growth, reform and improvement of the construction sector 

and the industry’s enhanced role in the country’s economy as 

well as regulate the industry. The cidb is under the Executive 

Authority of the DPW.

Business Address

Registered Office: 

Block N, R & Z, SABS Campus

No. 2 Dr Lategan Road

Groenkloof, Pretoria 

0027  

Postal Address: 

P.O. Box 2107  

Brooklyn Square     

0075        

Bankers 

   

Standard Bank of SA Limited

Investec Bank Limited

External Auditors

 

Auditor-General of South Africa

Internal Auditors

Morar Incorporated Chartered Accountants (SA)

Report of the Accounting Authority
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New or Proposed Activities

No new activities were undertaken during the period under 

review. Furthermore, there are no new proposed activities 

for the upcoming Financial Year.

Events After Reporting Date

Two independent members were appointed to serve on the 

Audit and Risk Committee with effect from 1st May 2015 for 

a period of 3 years; as a replacement for the two external 

members of the committee that ceased to be members of 

the Audit Committee. These members are not full time Board 

Members of the cidb. 

With effect from May 2015, the following committees were 

merged into one and referred to as “Core Programmes 

Committee”: 

• Construction Industry Transformation;

• Decentralisation; and

• Construction Registers Service.

Performance Information

The cidb has developed an Annual Performance Plan (APP).

This APP provides clear indication of goals and objectives 

for the 2014/15 period. Such a plan was developed for the 

2014/15 Financial Year. Progress reports were tabled at each 

Board and Committee meetings of the cidb.

Furthermore, the cidb reported to DPW on a quarterly basis 

regarding progress towards the achievement of the stated 

outputs and objectives, in line with the funding arrangement 

between the DPW and cidb.

A detailed report on the activities of the cidb is included 

under a separate section of the Annual Report.

Approval

The Annual Financial Statements for the year ended  

31 March 2015, set out on pages 52 to 89 were approved by 

the Accounting Authority in terms of section 51(1)(f) of the 

PFMA, as amended and are signed on its behalf by:

Inba Thumbiran 
Acting Chief Executive Officer
31 July 2015

Lindelwa T. Myataza                     
Chairperson: cidb Board 
31 July 2015
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Note
2015

R
2014

R

Revenue

Assessment fees 11 33,109,450 28,685,850

Other income 12 757,391 1,211,581

Finance income 13 7,199,876 4,317,523

Government grants 11 77,212,000 72,361,000

Contractor fines 65,000 60,000

Annual fees 11 33,210,864 30,816,802

Total revenue 151,554,581 137,452,756

Expenditure

Employee benefit cost 20 (77,042,093) (73,258,297)

Members' emoluments 24 (1,250,075) (961,205)

Depreciation and amortisation (4,258,723) (4,122,857)

Finance costs 21 (693,673) (587,449)

Bad debt written off 22 (208,084) (549,970)

Operating expenses 23 (46,642,578) (43,343,042)

Total expenditure (130,095,226) (122,822,820)

Operating surplus 21,459,355 14,629,936

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (273,115) (1,647,475)

Loss on disposal of intangible assets (790) (5,218)

(273,905) (1,652,693)

Surplus for the year 21,185,450 12,977,243

Statement of Financial Performance
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Note
2015

R
2014

R

Assets

Current Assets

Receivables from exchange transactions 5 1,418,330 1,527,256

Cash and cash equivalents 6 122,918,708 98,501,419

124,337,038 100,028,675

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 3 14,295,417 15,138,911

Intangible assets 4 7,768,937 8,266,283

22,064,354 23,405,194

Total Assets 146,401,392 123,433,869

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Finance lease obligation 7 1,401,947 1,004,515

Payables from exchange transactions 8 6,753,849 12,972,998

Provisions 9 4,859,968 2,382,490

Income received in advance 10 42,958,841 36,645,075

55,974,605 53,005,078

Non-Current Liabilities

Finance lease obligation 7 663,403 1,850,857

Total Liabilities 56,638,008 54,855,935

Net Assets Attributable To Owners Of Controlling Entity

Accumulated surplus 89,763,384 68,577,935

Total Net Assets 89,763,384 68,577,935

Statement of Financial Position
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Note 2015
R

2014
R

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts

Registers income 66,385,314 59,954,833

Grants received 77,212,000 72,361,000

Interest income 7,199,876 4,317,523

Other receipts 757,390 1,208,931

151,554,580 137,842,287

Payments

Compensation to employees (74,564,616) (68,868,569)

Payments to suppliers and others (47,897,193) (43,745,785)

(122,461,809) (112,614,354)

Net cash flows from operating activities 16 29,092,771 25,227,933

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 3 (2,243,967) (2,739,269)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 183,658 -

Purchase of other intangible assets 4 (895,921) (392,704)

Net cash flows from investing activities (2,956,230) (3,126,756)

Cash flows from financing activities

Finance lease payments - capital (1,025,579) (534,170)

Finance lease payments - finance cost (693,673) (587,448)

Net cash flows from financing activities (1,719,252) (1,121,618)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 24,417,289 20,979,559

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 98,501,419 77,527,077

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 6 122,918,708 98,506,636

Cash Flow Statement
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Accumulated 
surplus

R

Total net assets

R

Balance at 1 April 2013 - Restated 55,600,687 55,600,687

Surplus for the year 12,977,248 12,977,248

Total changes 12,977,248 12,977,248

Balance at 1 April 2014 68,577,935 68,577,935

Surplus for the year 21,185,449 21,185,449

Total changes 21,185,449 21,185,449

Balance at 31 March 2015 89,763,384 89,763,384

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
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Approved 
budget

R
Adjustments

R

Final 
budget

R

Actual 
amounts on 
comparable 

basis
R

Difference 
between 

final budget 
and actual

R Reference

Statement of Financial 
Performance

Revenue

Revenue From Exchange 
Transactions

Assessment fees 25,073,940 - 25,073,940 33,109,450 8,035,510 11

Other income - - - 757,391 757,391 12

Finance income 3,263,000 - 3,263,000 7,199,876 3,936,876 13

Total revenue from exchange 
transactions 28,336,940 - 28,336,940 41,066,717 12,729,777

Revenue From Non-

Exchange Transactions

Transfer Revenue
Government grants & subsidies 77,212,000 - 77,212,000 77,212,000 - 11

Contractor fines - - - 65,000 65,000 11

Annual fees 22,991,060 - 22,991,060 33,210,864 10,219,804 11

Total revenue from non-
exchange transactions 100,203,060 - 100,203,060 110,487,864 10,284,804

Total revenue 128,540,000 - 128,540,000 151,554,581 23,014,581

Expenditure
Personnel (87,699,355) 10,000,000 (77,699,355) (77,042,090) 657,265 20

Depreciation and amortisation - - - (4,258,723) (4,258,723) 3 & 4

Finance costs - - - (693,673) (693,673) 21

Bad debt written off - - - (208,084) (208,084) 22

Members' emoluments (1,644,323) - (1,644,323) (1,250,075) 394,248 24

Operating Expenses (39,196,322) (10,000,000) (49,196,322) (46,642,581) 2,553,741 23

Total expenditure (128,540,000) - (128,540,000) (130,095,226) (1,555,226)

Operating surplus - - - 21,459,355 21,459,355

Loss on disposal of assets - - - (273,905) (273,905) 3 & 4

Surplus before taxation - - - 21,185,450 21,185,450

Actual Amount on Comparable 
Basis as Presented in the 
Budget and Actual Comparative 
Statement - - - 21,185,450 21,185,450 30

Reconciliation

Basis Difference

Depreciation and amortisation 4,258,723 3 & 4

Finance costs 693,673 17

Bad debt written off 208,084 15

Loss on disposal of assets 273,905 3 & 4

Actual Amount in the Statement 
of Financial Performance 26,619,835

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts
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1.  Presentation of Annual Financial Statements

The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting 

Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance 

with Section 122(3) of the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999) (PFMA).

These Annual Financial Statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical 

cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise. They are presented in South African Rand.

Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses were not offset, except where offsetting is either required or permitted by a Standard 

of GRAP.

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in the preparation of these Annual 

Financial Statements, are disclosed below.

1.1  Presentation Currency

These Annual Financial Statements are presented in South African Rand and are not rounded off.

1.2 Going Concern Assumption

The cidb is largely dependent on the Department of Public Works (DPW) for continued funding of operations. DPW has neither 

the intention nor the need to liquidate or materially curtail the scale of cidb.

The Accounting Authority in line with DPW’s intention, considers that cidb has adequate resources to continue operating for 

the foreseeable future and that it is therefore appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing cidb’s Annual Financial 

Statements. The Accounting Authority has satisfied itself that cidb is in a sound financial position and that it has access to 

sufficient cash resources to meet its foreseeable cash requirements.

These Annual Financial Statements have been prepared based on the expectation that cidb will continue to operate as a going 

concern in the year(s) ahead.

1.3 Significant Judgements and Sources of Estimating Uncertainty

In preparing the Annual Financial Statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 

amounts represented in the Annual Financial Statements and related disclosures. These estimates and associated assumptions 

are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Use of 

available information and the application of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Actual results in the future could differ from these 

estimates which may be material to the Annual Financial Statements.

Accounting Policies
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Impairment of property, plant and equipment and finite life intangible assets

Consideration is given each financial position date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment of the carrying 

amounts of property, plant and equipment and finite intangible assets. If any indication exists, an asset’s recoverable amount 

is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The 

recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less cost to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future 

cash flows are discounted to their present value, based on the time value of money and the specific risk.

Assets that suffered an impairment are tested for possible reversal of impairment at each reporting date if indications exist that 

impairment losses recognised in prior periods no longer exist or have decreased.

Assessment of useful lives

The residual value and useful life of an asset are regarded as accounting estimates and intrinsically have an element of uncertainty 

associated with them. As such they are based on information available at the time that they are estimated.

It is therefore expected that these estimates will differ at various stages of an asset’s life depending on economic times and 

management’s intentions. Useful lives and residual amounts are reviewed and assessed at each Financial Year end.

Such review and assessment take into consideration the nature of the assets, their intended use and technical obsolescence. The 

residual value and useful life of an asset is reviewed, and revised, if necessary, at each Financial Year end.

Bad debts written off

On debtors, an impairment loss is recognised in surplus and deficit when there is objective evidence that it is impaired. The 

impairment is measured as the difference between the debtors carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash 

flows discounted at the effective interest rate, computed at initial recognition.

Leave provision

Employees’ entitlement to annual leave is recognised when it accrues. A provision is made on the estimated liability for annual 

leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the amount of the obligation.

Provision for performance

Employees’ entitlement to performance bonus is recognised when the Board has approved a bonus percentage for the year. 

The provision becomes actual after being qualified by the results of the performance measurement tool applied. Payment of 

performance bonuses is the sole discretion of the Board and dependent on the availability of funds. The amount recognised as a 

provision shall be the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date.

1.4 Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets that are held for use in the production or supply of goods or 

services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during more than one period.
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The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:

 

•  it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to cidb; and

• the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the 

location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and 

rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost. Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant 

and equipment and costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the 

carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

Where an asset is acquired at no cost, or for a nominal cost, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a 

combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the acquired 

item’s fair value was not determinable, it’s deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as 

separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the location 

and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated residual 

value.

Assets acquired under finance leases are capitalised and depreciated in accordance with cidb’s policy on property, plant and 

equipment unless the lease term is shorter. Leasehold assets are depreciated as below.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The useful lives of items 

of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

Item    Average useful life

Furniture and fixtures 10 - 15 years

Motor vehicles  5 years

Office equipment  8 - 16 years

Computer equipment 3 years

Leasehold assets  3 years

The residual value, and the useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting date. If 

the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.
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Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is 

depreciated separately.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of another 

asset.

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic 

benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit 

when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is 

determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.

1.5 Intangible Assets

An asset is identified as an intangible asset when it:

•  is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from cidb and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged, either 

individually or together with a related contract, identifiable assets or liability, regardless of whether the cidb intends to do so; 

or

•  arises from contractual rights or other legal rights, regardless whether those rights are transferable or separate from cidb or 

from other rights and obligations.

An intangible asset is recognised when:

•  it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset will flow to 

cidb; and

•  the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.

An intangible asset acquired through a non-exchange transaction, the cost shall be its fair value as at the date of acquisition. The 

amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date.

Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an indicator that the 

asset may be impaired. As a result the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is amortised over its 

useful life.

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as follows:

Item     Useful life

Computer software, other  1 - 16 years

Intangible assets are derecognised:

•  on disposal; or

•  when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or disposal.



cidb ANNUAL REPORT 2014 | 2015

0
6
1

Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2015

1.6 Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one cidb and a financial liability or a residual interest 

of another entity.

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is 

measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest 

method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directly or through the 

use of an allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility.

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge 

an obligation.

Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability from cidb’s statement of financial 

position.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated fututre cash payments or receipts through the expected life 

of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial 

liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, cidb shall estimate cash flows considering all contractual terms of the 

financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and similar options) but shall not consider future credit losses. The calculation 

includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest 

rate (see the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions), transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts. 

There is a presumption that the cash flows and the expected life of a group of similar financial instruments can be estimated 

reliably. However, in those rare cases when it is not possible to reliably estimate the cash flows or the expected life of a financial 

instrument (or group of financial instruments), cidb shall use the contractual cash flows over the full contractual term of the 

financial instrument (or group of financial instruments).

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties in 

an arm’s length transaction.

A financial asset is:

•  cash;

•  a residual interest of another entity; or

•  a contractual right to:

 - receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or

 - exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially favourable to cidb.

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to:

•  deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or

•  exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to cidb.
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Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 

market interest rates.

Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by cidb in the event of difficulty in meeting obligations and statutory commitments associated 

with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk is managed by:

•  investing in short term deposit facilities with a maturity period between 14 and 32 days as per cashflows forecasts;

•  timeous request and release of funds by the DPW to cidb; and

•  the nature of the cidb’s business is on cash basis.

A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due.

A residual interest is any contract that manifests an interest in the assets of cidb after deducting all of its liabilities. A residual 

interest includes contributions from owners, which may be shown as:

•  equity instruments or similar forms of unitised capital;

•  a formal designation of a transfer of resources (or a class of such transfers) by the parties to the transaction as forming part 

of cidb’s net assets, either before the contribution occurs or at the time of the contribution; or

•  a formal agreement, in relation to the contribution, establishing or increasing an existing financial interest in the net assets of cidb.

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or 

financial liability. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if cidb had not acquired, issued or disposed of 

the financial instrument.

Financial instruments at amortised cost are non-derivative financial assets or non-derivative financial liabilities that have fixed or 

determinable payments, excluding those instruments that:

•  the cidb designates at fair value at initial recognition; or

Financial instruments at cost are investments in residual interests that do not have a quoted market price in an active market, and 

whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Financial instruments at fair value comprise financial assets or financial liabilities that are:

•  derivatives;

•  combined instruments that are designated at fair value;

•  instruments held for trading. A financial instrument is held for trading if:

 - it is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near-term; or

 -  on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which 

there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short term profit-taking;

 -  non-derivative financial assets or financial liabilities with fixed or determinable payments that are designated at fair value 

at initial recognition; and

 -  financial instruments that do not meet the definition of financial instruments at amortised cost or financial instruments at 

cost.
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Classification

The cidb has the following types of financial assets (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of financial 

position or in the notes thereto:

Class      Category

Trade and other receivables   Financial asset measured at amortised cost

Cash and cash equivalents   Financial asset measured at amortised cost

The cidb has the following types of financial liabilities (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of financial 

position or in the notes thereto:

Class      Category

Income received in advance   Financial liability measured at amortised cost

Payables from exchange transactions  Financial liability measured at amortised cost

Initial recognition

The cidb recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when the cidb becomes a party to 

the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The cidb recognises financial assets using trade date accounting.

Initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The cidb measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable 

to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.

The cidb measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value .

Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The cidb measures all financial assets and financial liabilities after initial recognition using the following categories:

 

•  Financial instruments at fair value.

•  Financial instruments at amortised cost.

•  Financial instruments at cost.

All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment review.

Presentation

Interest relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue or expense in surplus 

or deficit.
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Losses and gains relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue or expense 

in surplus or deficit.

A financial asset and a financial liability are only offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when 

the cidb currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis, or 

to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

1.7  Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is 

classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

When a lease includes both land and buildings elements, cidb assesses the classification of each element separately.

Finance leases - lessee

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fair value of 

the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in 

the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit in the lease.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance 

charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of on the remaining balance 

of the liability. Assets acquired under finance leases are capitalsed and depreciated in accordance with cidb’s policy on property, 

plant and equipment unless the lease term is shorter.

Operating leases - lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between the 

amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability.

1.8 Accruals

Accrual liabilities represent expenses already incurred but not yet paid.

1.9 Commitments

Committments are contractual agreements with the suppliers of goods and services, where delivery has not yet taken place. 

Committements are disclosed in the notes to the Annual Financial Statements at nominal value of the contractual agreement.
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1.10 Employee Benefit

Short-term employee benefits

The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as paid vacation 

leave and sick leave and performance bonuses are recognised in the period in which the service is rendered and are not discounted.

The expected cost of compensated absences (leave provision) is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that 

increase their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs.

The expected cost of surplus sharing and bonus payments is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or constructive 

obligation to make such payments as a result of past performance.

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which cidb pays fixed contributions into a separate entity which administer 

the fund. The cidb has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets 

to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. Payments to defined contribution 

retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense as they fall due. The cidb currently contributes towards the insurance portion 

of the fund on behalf of it’s employee. The insurance contributed by cidb covers guaranteed benefits on disability and death.

Provident Fund

The cidb operates a provident fund on behalf of its employees, the provident fund is administered by a single pension fund that is 

legally separated from cidb. The cidb has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold 

sufficient assets to pay all eligible employees the benefits. Membership of the provident fund is compulsory for all employees who 

joined cidb after 1 September 2010 and optional for all employees who joined cidb before the said date.

The cidb employee benefit structure is on the total cost to company and as such do not directly contribute towards the provident 

fund on behalf of its employees who are members of the provident fund and only employees contribute towards the provident 

fund.

Contributions to the Provident fund operated for employees are charged against income as incurred.

1.11 Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognised when:

•  cidb has a present obligation as a result of a past event;

•  it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the 

obligation; and

•  a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present obligation at the 

reporting date.
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Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures expected 

to be required to settle the obligation.

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to 

the liability.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the 

reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if entity settles the 

obligation. The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement does not exceed the 

amount of the provision.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it is no longer 

probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to settle  the obligation.

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the passage of time. This increase 

is recognised as an interest expense in ‘’profit and loss’’.

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised. Provisions are not recognised for future 

losses.

If cidb has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is recognised and measured 

as a provision.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 18.

1.12 Revenue from Exchange Transactions

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result in an 

increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.

An exchange transaction is one in which the cidb receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly gives 

approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in exchange.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in 

an arm’s length transaction.

Measurement

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume rebates.

Registers income

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with the 

transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The outcome of a 

transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:
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•  the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

•  it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity;

•  the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and

•  the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.

When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time frame, revenue is recognised on a 

straight line basis over the specified time frame unless there is evidence that some other method better represents the stage of 

completion. When a specific act is much more significant than any other acts, the recognition of revenue is postponed until the 

significant act is executed.

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only 

to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.

Finance income

Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assets yielding interest is recognised when:

•  It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to entity, and

•  The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.

Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method.

1.13 Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable by cidb, which represents an 

increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions by the Department of Public Works (DPW).

Revenue from non-exchange transactions refers to the transactions where cidb receives revenue from another entity without 

directly giving approximately equal value in exchange.

Exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly 

gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of cash, goods, services, or use of assets) to another entity in exchange.

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange transaction, the cidb either 

receives value from another entity without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange, or gives value to another entity 

without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange.

Revenue from the non-exchange transaction takes the form of grants from the Department of Public Works and is received on an 

annual basis and raised as revenue on receipt.

Recognition

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, except to the extent 

that a liability is also recognised in respect of the same inflow.
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As cidb satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction 

recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises an amount of revenue equal to 

that reduction.

Measurement

Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by cidb.

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, cidb recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue equivalent to the amount of 

the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise a liability. Where a liability is 

required to be recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at the reporting 

date, and the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a liability is subsequently reduced, 

because the taxable event occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the liability is recognised as revenue.

Fines

Fines are economic benefits or service potential received or receivable by cidb from an individual or other entity, as determined 

by the outcome of the hearing, as a consequence of the individual or other entity breaching the requirements of cidb regulations. 

The cidb is empowered to impose fines on individuals or entities considered to have breached the cidb regulations. The payment 

is recognised as a fine.

1.14 Finance Costs

Finance costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

1.15 Comparative Figures

Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the current year.

1.16 Unauthorised Expenditure

Unauthorised expenditure means:

 

•  overspending of a vote or a main division within a vote; and

•  expenditure not in accordance with the purpose of a vote or, in the case of a main division, not in accordance with the purpose 

of the main division.

All expenditure relating to unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance in the 

year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, and where 

recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance.
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1.17 Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been 

exercised.

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance 

in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, and 

where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance.

1.18 Irregular Expenditure

Irregular expenditure as defined in the Public Finance Management Act No.1 of 1999 is expenditure other than unauthorised 

expenditure, incurred in contravention of or that is not in accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation, including -

(a) this Act; or

(b) the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No. 86 of 1968), or any regulations made in terms of the Act; or

(c) any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial government.

National Treasury practice note no. 4 of 2008/2009 which was issued in terms of sections 76(1) to 76(4) of the Public Finance 

Management Act effective from 1 April 2008 and the updated guideline on irregular expenditure issued on 28 May 2014 and 

effective from 1 April 2015 requires the following:

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial and which was condoned before year end and/

or before finalisation of the Annual Financial Statements must also be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current Financial Year and for which condonement is being 

awaited at year end must be recorded in the irregular expenditure register.

Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous Financial Year and is only condoned in the subsequent Financial Year, the 

register and the disclosure note to the Annual Financial Statements must be updated with the amount condoned.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current Financial Year and which was not condoned by the 

National Treasury or the relevant authority must be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. If liability for the 

irregular expenditure can be attributed to a person, a debt account must be created if such a person is liable in law. Immediate 

steps must thereafter be taken to recover the amount from the person concerned. If recovery is not possible, the accounting 

officer or Accounting Authority may write off the amount as bad debt written off and disclose such in the relevant note to the 

Annual Financial Statements. The irregular expenditure register must also be updated accordingly. If the irregular expenditure has 

not been condoned and no person is liable in law, the expenditure related thereto must remain against the relevant programme/

expenditure item, be disclosed as such in the note to the Annual Financial Statements and updated accordingly in the irregular 

expenditure register.

cidb is required to comply with the standards of GRAP, cidb shall incur irregular expenditure when a transaction, condition or 

an event linked to the transgression that has financial implications is recognised as expenditure in the Statement of Financial 

Performance in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP).
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Irregular expenditure that is not recoverable because no official was found to be liable in law for such transgression and was not 

also not condoned by the relevent Treasury will be de-recognised in the balance of the irregular expenditure note. The Accounting 

Authority will only de-recognise irregular expenditure when the Accounting Authority is satisfied that:

(a)  reasonable steps have been taken to confirm that such irregular expenditure did not result in any loss or damages to the cidb 

and that the cidb did obtain value from such a transaction, condition or event;

(b)  the non-compliance that lead to the irregular expenditure is being addressed; and

(c)  transactions, conditions or events of a similar nature are regularly reviewed to ensure that there are no possible future non- 

compliance cases reported.

The Accounting Authority will write-off irregular after confirmation of the controls implemented by management to prevent 

occurence of irregular expenditure by informing the relevent delegated official in writing to de-recognise the irregular expenditure 

in the notes to the financial statements.

1.19 Related Parties

The cidb operates in an economic sector currently dominated by entities directly or indireclty owned by the South African 

Government. As a consequence of the constitutional independence of the three spheres of government in South Africa, only 

public entities with the ability to control or jointly control cidb or exercise significant influence over cidb, or vice versa, or entities 

that are subject to common control, or joint control within the national sphere of government are considered to be related parties. 

Only transactions carried within the ambit of the Department of Public Works and transactions not carried out at arms’ length 

basis are disclosed.

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the 

activities of cidb, directly or indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise) of cidb. Key management personnel 

are limited to the Board and the Executives only.

Close members of the family of key management are considered to be those family members who may be expected to influence, 

or be influenced by, management in their dealings with cidb.

All transactions with related parties are disclosed.

1.20 Budget Information

The cidb is typically subjected to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget authorisations (or equivalent), which is 

given effect through authorising legislation, appropriation or similar.

General purpose financial reporting by cidb shall provide information on whether resources were obtained and used in accordance 

with the legally adopted budget.

The approved budget is prepared on a cash basis and presented by economic classification linked to performance outcome 

objectives. The approved budget covers the fiscal period from 4/1/2014 to 3/31/2015.
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The Annual Financial Statements and the budget are not on the same basis of accounting therefore a reconciliation between the 

statement of financial performance and the budget have been included in the Annual Financial Statements. Refer to note 30.

1.21 Events after the Reporting Period

Events after the reporting date are those events that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date the Annual 

Financial Statements are authorised for issue. The cidb accounts for those events after the reporting period that provide evidence 

of the condition that existed at the end of the reporting period by adjusting the Annual Financial Statements, all other material 

events that are indicative of the condition that arouse after the reporting period are disclosed in the notes to the Annual Financial 

Statements.

2.  New Standards and Interpretations

The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with standard of Generally Accepted Recognised Practice 

(GRAP) as issued by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB). The basis is consistent with prior year and there were no new 

standards and interpretations applicable to cidb which were issued in the year under review.
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3.  Property, Plant and Equipment

2015 2014

Cost

Accumulated 
depreciation 

and accumulat-
ed impairment

Carrying 
value Cost

Accumulated 
depreciation 

and accumulat-
ed impairment

Carrying 
value

Furniture and fixtures 7,434,237 (3,314,341) 4,119,896 7,392,950 (3,055,684) 4,337,266

Motor vehicles 180,775 (32,540) 148,235 - - -

Office equipment 8,191,386 (4,322,633) 3,868,753 7,857,801 (2,888,126) 4,969,675

Computer equipment 10,067,845 (3,909,312) 6,158,533 9,323,063 (3,491,093) 5,831,970

Total 25,874,243 (11,578,826) 14,295,417 24,573,814 (9,434,903) 15,138,911

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2015

Opening 
balance Additions Disposals

Deprecia-
tion Total

Furniture and fixtures 4,337,266 449,040 (152,220) (514,190) 4,119,896

Motor vehicles - 180,775 - (32,539) 148,236

Office equipment 4,969,675 400,015 (22,425) (1,478,513) 3,868,752

Computer equipment 5,831,970 1,444,563 (282,126) (835,874) 6,158,533

15,138,911 2,474,393 (456,771) (2,861,116) 14,295,417

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2014

Opening 
balance Additions Disposals

Other 
changes, 

movements
Deprecia-

tion Total

Furniture and fixtures 4,537,146 362,194 (74,471) - (487,603) 4,337,266

Office equipment 3,013,181 3,831,453 (570,739) - (1,304,220) 4,969,675

Computer equipment 6,353,716 1,825,271 (1,002,266) (172,221) (1,172,530) 5,831,970

13,904,043 6,018,918 (1,647,476) (172,221) (2,964,353) 15,138,911

Pledged as security 

cidb has no assets classfied under Property, Plant and Equipment pledged as security for liabilities and no restrictions have been 

imposed on any of its assets.

Assets subject to finance lease (Net carrying amount) 

2015
R

2014
R

Office equipment 1,663,017 2,550,839

Computer software, other 53,399 85,468

1,716,416 2,636,307
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4. Intangible Assets

2015 2014

Cost

Accumulat-
ed amorti-
sation and 
accumulat-
ed impair-

ment
Carrying 

value Cost

Accumulat-
ed amorti-
sation and 
accumulat-
ed impair-

ment
Carrying 

value

Computer software, other 11,815,760 (4,046,823) 7,768,937 10,941,123 (2,674,840) 8,266,283

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2015

Opening 
balance Additions Disposals

Reclassifica-
tion

Amortisa-
tion Total

Computer software, other 8,266,283 901,050 (791) (1,397,605) 7,768,938

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2014

Opening 
balance Additions Disposals

Reclassifica-
tion

Amortisa-
tion Total

Computer software, other 8,755,194 502,591 (5,217) 172,221 (1,158,506) 8,266,283

Pledged as security

cidb has no intangible assets pledged as security for liabilities and no restrictions have been imposed on any of its assets.

5. Receivables from Exchange Transactions

2015
R

2014
R

Trade receivables 303,554 331,352

Prepayments 1,114,776 1,195,904

1,418,330 1,527,256

Trade and other receivables impaired 

As of 31 March 2015, trade and other receivables written off of R219,160 (2014: R217,934) were impaired and provided for. The 

amount of the provision was  R34,973 as of 31 March 2015 (2014: R530,549).

Provision for bad debt has been determined by reference to cidb’s policy of debt management, past default experience and the 

current economic environment.
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The cidb considers the carrying amount of receivables to approximate their fair value.

Reconciliation of provision for impairment of trade and other receivables

2015
R

2014
R

Opening balance (530,549) (198,514)

Provision for impairment (34,973) (332,035)

Amounts recovered 484,500 -

Unused amounts reversed 46,049 -

(34,973) (530,549)

6. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash on hand 36,151 18,538

Bank balances - Call Deposits 812,801 1,553,254

Bank balances - Maturity Deposits 122,069,756 96,929,627

122,918,708 98,501,419

A financial guarantee in a form of a Security Bond amounting to R3,151,281 was issued to Raphela Incorporated. This guarantee 

serves in the labour dispute matter between cidb and the former CEO. The guarantee was issued to the Department of Labour as 

a requirement to lodge a review application of the CCMA Award; this is in compliance with section 145(8) of the Labour Relations 

Act of 1995, as amended.

7. Finance Lease Obligation

Minimum lease payments due

- within one year 1,822,936 1,682,423

- in second to fifth year inclusive 739,707 2,243,200

2,562,643 3,925,623

less: future finance charges (497,293) (1,070,251)

Present value of minimum lease payments 2,065,350 2,855,372

Present value of minimum lease payments due

- within one year 1,401,947 1,004,515

- in second to fifth year inclusive 663,403 1,850,857

2,065,350 2,855,372

Non-current liabilities 663,403 1,850,857

Current liabilities 1,401,947 1,004,515

2,065,350 2,855,372

At the reporting date, cidb had a lease agreement in respect of office equipments. The lease agreements are not renewable at 

the end of the lease term and cidb does not have any option to acquire the equipments at the end of the lease term.
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In addition to the lease agreement for photocopying machines, cidb has entered into a finance lease agreement term of 36 

months for franking machine.

The average effective borrowing rate of of the lease agreements is 18%.

Interest rates are as fixed at the contract date. The lease agreements have fixed repayments and no arrangements have been 

entered into for contingent rent.

The lease agreements do not impose any restrictions on cidb.

8. Payables from Exchange Transactions

2015
R

2014
R

Trade payables 842,540 2,960,410

Unallocated deposits 3,524,226 4,609,301

Trade accruals 1,792,953 2,873,306

Other payroll accruals 47,433 434,570

Payroll liabilities 546,697 2,095,411

6,753,849 12,972,998

9. Provisions

Reconciliation of provisions - 2015

Opening 
Balance

Additions Utilised during 
the year Total

Provision for performance bonus - 2,169,007 - 2,169,007

Provision for leave 2,306,490 2,540,960 (2,306,490) 2,540,960

Provision for termination 76,000 150,000 (76,000) 150,000

2,382,490 4,859,967 (2,382,490) 4,859,967

Reconciliation of provisions - 2014

Provision for leave 1,807,500 2,352,551 (1,853,561) 2,306,490

Provision for termination - 76,000 - 76,000

1,807,500 2,428,551 (1,853,561) 2,382,490

Provision for performance bonus is calculated at a percentage as determine for all non-bargaining staff member who qualifies 

for the performance bonus. There are no envisaged uncertainties about the amount or timing of the outflow that may affect the 

provision for performance bonus.

Provision for leave is calculated at current salary rate multiplied by number of available leave credits. There are no uncertainties 

envisaged that may affect the above provisions.

The new provision for termination of R150,000 is as a result of a CCMA Settlement Agreement reached on 27 May 2015 between 

the cidb and the former IT Manager.
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10. Income Received in Advance

2015
R

2014
R

Contractors not assessed (work-in-progress) 42,958,841 36,645,075

11. Revenue

Registers revenue 33,109,450 28,685,850

Other income 757,391 1,211,580

Finance income 7,199,876 4,317,523

Government grants 77,212,000 72,361,000

Contractor fines 65,000 60,000

Annual fees 33,210,864 30,816,802

151,554,581 137,452,755

The amount included in revenue arising from exchanges of goods or services are 
as follows:

Assessment fees 33,109,450 28,685,850

Other income 757,391 1,211,580

Finance income 7,199,876 4,317,523

41,066,717 34,214,953

The amount included in revenue arising from non-exchange transactions is as 
follows:

Transfer revenue

Government grants 77,212,000 72,361,000

Contractor fines 65,000 60,000

Annual fees 33,210,864 30,816,802

110,487,864 103,237,802

12.    Other Income

Proceeds from insurance claims - 70,742

Sundry income 757,391 1,140,839

757,391 1,211,581

13.    Finance Income

Interest revenue

Bank 7,199,876 4,317,523
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14. Income Tax Exemption

The cidb is exempt from Income Tax in terms of section 10 (1) (cA) (i) of the Income Tax Act.

15. Audit Fees

2015
R

2014
R

External audit fees 1,048,741 1,228,597

Internal audit fees 492,577 575,903

1,541,318 1,804,500

16. Cash Generated from Operations

Surplus

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation

21,185,449

4,258,723

12,977,248

4,122,857

Loss on assets written off 273,905 1,652,693

Finance costs 693,673 587,449

Debt impairment 208,083 549,970

Movements in provisions

Changes in working capital:

Receivables from exchange transactions

2,477,477

108,926

574,990

392,180

Reversal of bad debts provision (208,083) (549,970)

Payables from exchange transactions (6,219,149) (431,680)

Income received in advance 6,313,767 5,352,196

29,092,771 25,227,933

17. Commitments

Already contracted for but not provided for

• Outstanding contractual obligations as at year-end 36,993,355 48,959,741

  

None of the commitments relates to acquisition of Property, plant and Equipment.

Operating leases - as lessee (expense)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by cidb to SABS for its office properties in Pretoria. The cidb engaged the 

Department of Public Works to take over the lease agreement negotiations with SABS as per Government Immovable Asset 

Management Act 19 of 2007 which mandates DPW to manage leases of government departments and public entities. A letter 

was received from the DPW granting cidb permission to continue with the leasing of SABS properties on a month-to-month basis 

until the procurement process has been completed and a new lease procured.
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18. Contingencies

2015
R

2014
R

Contingent liabilities

Liable to:

National Treasury 34,162,698 12,977,248

The accumulated surplus of R34,162,698 has been classified as a contingent liability at 31 March 2015 as there is no approval 

received as yet to retain the surplus funds. In terms of PFMA Section 53 (3) entities are not allowed to accumulate surpluses unless 

approved by National Treasury. An approval was granted on 8 February 2013 by National Treasury to retain the surplus. The cidb 

is obliged to repay to National Treasury any amount of the surplus not granted for retention. The cidb is currently in engagements 

with National Treasury regarding additional surplus.

Furthermore, the cidb received budget cuts of a total of R39,400,000 over the 2015/16 MTEF. As such, the said budget cuts will 

be augmented by reprioritising the accumulated surplus so as to ensure that the cidb still delivers on its mandate.

Liable to:

The contingent liability related to a Labour Court case not yet finalised. This relates to the former employee of the cidb who was 

dismissed in February 2015. He consequently referred the matter to the CCMA.

The CCMA finalised the case in May 2015 and ruled in favor of the employee who was to be reinstated and compensated. The 

compensation to be paid amounts to R241,666. The cidb has since challanged the CCMA Award at the Labour Court and to have 

the matter reviewed by the Labour Court, cidb had to pledge a Security Bond of approximately R3 million in this regard. The 

matter has not been finalised by the Labour Court and the full contingent liability cannot, at this stage, be reliably estimated.

Liable to: Service Provider - for unpaid invoices amounting to R100,515.

These invoices have not been accrued by the cidb as they are disputed by the cidb.

19. Related Parties

• National Department of Public Works;

• Gauteng Provincial Department of Public Works; Eastern Cape Department of Roads and Public Works;

• Western Cape Department of Transport and Public Works; KwaZulu-Natal Department of Public Works;

• Free State Department of Police, Roads and Transport; Mpumalanga Department of Public Works;

• Limpopo Department of Public Works; and

•  North West Department of Public Works, Roads and Transport; Northern Cape Regional Development of Roads and Public 

Works.

The cidb has entered into an arrangement with the provincial departments of Public Works whereby the departments will provide 

office space for the cidb operations for free. The cidb operates out of the offices mentioned above.
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Related party balances

2015
R

2014
R

Amounts included in Trade receivable regarding related parties

Balance on recovery of Inba Thumbiran’s salary 189,540 189,540

Unrecoverable balance of Inba Thumbiran’s salary - written off as bad debt (189,540) -

Related party transactions

Grant transfer received from DPW

Department of Public Works 77,212,000 72,361,000

Income received from DPW for secondment of a staff member

Recovery of Inba Thumbiran's salary - 1,191,523

20. Employee Benefit Cost

Basic 62,890,918 56,786,781

Bonus 1,734,909 4,178,272

UIF 321,619 316,134

Group Life company contribution 298,898 283,705

Leave payment 412,697 769,054

Provident fund contributions 3,527,358 2,482,214

69,186,399 64,816,160

Remuneration of executives

Annual Remuneration 7,401,215 7,963,438

Acting Allowance 20,377 -

Performance Bonuses 434,098 478,698

7,855,690 8,442,136

Total

Employee Benefit Cost 77,042,093 73,258,292

21. Finance Costs

Finance leases 693,673 587,449

22. Bad Debt Written Off

Bad debts written off 219,160 217,935

Provision for bad debts 34,973 530,549

Reversal of bad debts provision (46,049) (198,514)

208,084 549,970
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23.   Operating Expenses

2015
R

2014
R

Audit fees 1,541,318 1,804,500

Bank charges 492,273 436,843

Other maintenance, repairs and running cost 1,374,040 804,917

Consulting and professional fees 13,638,336 11,512,564

Audit committee remuneration 144,927 209,685

Insurance 835,702 676,921

Computer expenses and consumables 2,247,315 1,574,127

Lease rentals - Buildings 5,131,766 4,677,441

Lease rentals - Other 573,733 925,032

Sponsorships 50,654 111,400

Motor vehicle expenses 5,230 -

Courier and delivery charges 208,174 331,031

Printing and stationery 3,893,762 4,461,274

Security 1,565,519 1,527,314

Training and staff development 1,367,060 1,207,530

Subscriptions and membership fees 118,398 46,471

Telephone and fax 2,665,771 2,941,522

Travel and subsistence - local 4,567,877 5,158,219

Electricity 1,210,169 1,386,819

Advertising 2,256,613 1,660,590

Legal fees 1,125,283 110,053

Penalties and fines 846 21,314

Venue expenses 1,627,812 1,757,475

46,642,578 43,343,042
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24. Members’ Emoluments

Board 2015

Designa-
tion

Board 
Meetings

Com- 
mittee  

Meetings

Other 
Meetings/ 
Activities

Board 
Meetings

Com-
mittee 

Meetings

Other 
Meetings/
Activities

Travel  
Allow-
ance Total

Myataza L.* Chairperson 15 - 27 94,464 - 145,814 107,465 347,743

Jiyane C. Deputy 
Chairperson 15 2 10 79,218 7,335 45,722 35,595 167,870

Fatyela-Lindie M.#* Member 9 1 - - - - - -

Mosai S. Member 9 6 4 42,560 12,544 13,440 31,433 99,977

Jacobs-Skweyiya N.@ Member 11 3 9 71,680 21,504 39,424 194,420 327,028

Maas N.F.* Member 9 3 - 48,384 14,336 - 7,904 70,624

Makhura S.M. Member 13 4 2 63,616 13,440 7,168 11,512 95,736

Skeepers N.C. Member 9 3 2 48,384 12,544 5,824 16,347 83,099

Sidzumo V. Member 13 2 7 62,944 8,512 16,800 9,243 97,499

Patel H.* Member 11 2 2 71,680 14,336 7,168 128,729 221,913

Maduray G. Member 9 - 1 42,112 - 3,584 2,419 48,115

Pandor N.S. Member 13 3 5 69,440 12,096 15,232 15,094 111,862

Makibinyane L.L. Member 9 4 2 46,592 9,856 4,928 8,667 70,043

Old Board expenses 
(1 April 2014 - 6 June 2014) 1 2 6 45,118 17,639 14,637 83,696 161,090

Total emoluments - Board 786,192 144,142 319,741 652,524 1,902,599

Board 2014

Total emoluments - Board 253,654 550,953 156,598 730,912 1,692,117

During the year under review, the term of office for Board came to an end on 6 June 2014 when the Minister appointed a new 

Board comprising of thirteen members. The term of new Board officially started on 1 August 2014. The total emoluments incurred 

during the period 1 April 2014 up to 6 June 2014 for the old Board is summarised in the table above. On the main, the old Board 

only had one Board meeting as well as one Risk Committee and one Audit Committee meeting; both committee meetings 

preceded the Board meeting which was held on 29 May 2014.

#  M. Fatyela-Lindie is not entitled to remuneration as she is a public servant (DPW representative).

*  L. Myataza, N. Maas, H. Patel and M. Fatyela-Lindie were re-appointed as Board Members for a second term. L. Myataza 

previously served as a Deputy Chairperson and she is now the Chairperson of the new Board.

@  N. Jacobs-Skweyiya passed on in December 2014, she was not replaced as at 31 March 2015.

Members’ emoluments for the Board, in respect of all meetings and activities amounted to a total of R1,250,075 (2014: R961,205).
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Board meetings include:

•  Statutory meetings, all pre-sheduled board/exco and committee meetings for the year; this includes Board induction and 

strategic planning meeting.

• All provincial stakeholder liaison meetings

• All the national stakeholder forums

Committee meetings include:

• All Board committee meetings for the year.

Other meetings include:

•  National and regional meetings as well as events, parliamentary meetings, road shows, other stakeholder meetings, any other 

meetings attended by members of the Board; and

• Attendance/participation at any other events or meetings as determined from time to time.

Executives 2015

Designation Salary
Acting 

Allowance
Performance

Bonus Total

M. Sokupa 

(CEO from 1 April 2014 to 27 February 2015)

CEO 1,226,450 - - 1,226,450

H. Khumalo CFO 1,119,871 - 85,477 1,205,348

G. Naidoo Prog Manager 1,226,983 - 84,608 1,311,591

R. Milford Prog Manager 1,371,110 - 94,550 1,465,660

I. Thumbiran 

(Acting CEO from 1 March 2015 to date)

Prog Manager 1,226,375 20,377 84,383 1,331,135

E. Moola Prog Manager 1,230,426 - 85,079 1,315,505

Total emoluments - Executives 7,401,215 20,377 434,097 7,855,689

Executives 2014

Total emoluments - Executives 7,592,992 370,446 478,698 8,442,136
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Audit committee 2015

Designation
Committee 
meetings

Committee 
meeting

Other 
meetings

Travel 
Allowance

Total

S. Thomas: CA(SA) Chairperson 5 87,162 2,849 90,011

N. Mhlongo: CA(SA) Member 3 52,776 2,141 54,917

Total emoluments - Audit committee 139,938 - 4,990 144,928

Audit committee 2014

Total emoluments - Audit committee 186,389 17,592 5,704 209,695

*  S. Thomas resigned on 6 March 2015 as a member of the Audit Committee, she was a Chairperson of the cidb Audit 

Committee until 30 October 2014 and L. Makibinyane (a member of the cidb Board) was appointed as the new Chairperson 

of Audit and Risk Committe.

# N. Mhlongo’s term as a member of the Audit Committee came to an end on 31 March 2015.

25. Change in Estimate

Property, plant and equipment

In terms of the requirements of GRAP 17 Property, Plant and Equipment which states that the useful lives of assets must be 

reviewed at each balance sheet date, management revised the estimated useful lives of computer equipment, office equipment 

and furniture and fittings. In prior periods, management had estimated the useful lives of computer equipment and office 

equipment to be twelve years. The effect of this revision has reduced the depreciation charges for the current and future periods 

by R275,440.17.
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26. Risk Management

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that cidb will not be able to meets its financial obligations as they become due. Cidb ensures that adequate 

funds are available to meet its expected and unexpected financial commitments. The following table provides details of cidb’s 

remaining contractual liability for its financial liabilities and availability of cash resources. The amounts disclosed in the table are 

the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balance due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting 

is not significant.

At March 31, 2015

Carrying 
Amount

Contractual 
cash flows

Contractual 
cash flows with 

1 year

Contractual 
cash flows 

between 1 and 
5 years

Financial guarantee 3,151,285 3,151,285 3,151,285 -

Trade and other payables 6,753,849 6,753,849 6,753,849 -

Income received in advance 42,958,841 42,958,841 42,958,841 -

Finance lease 2,065,350 2,065,350 1,401,947 663,403

At March 31, 2014

Carrying 
Amount

Contractual 
cash flows

Contractual 
cash flows with 

1 year

Contractual 
cash flows 

between 1 and 
5 years

Trade and other payables 12,972,998 12,972,998 12,972,998 -

Income received in advance 36,645,075 36,645,075 36,645,075 -

Finance lease 2,855,372 2,855,372 1,004,515 1,850,857

The following table shows the classification of the cidb’s principal instruments together with their carrying value:

Financial instrument Classification Carrying Value Carrying Value

Cash and cash equivalents Financial asset at amortised cost 122,918,708 98,501,419

Receivables Financial asset at amortised cost 303,554 331,352

Trade and other payables Financial liability measured at amortised cost 6,753,849 12,972,998

Income received in advance Financial liability measured at amortised cost 42,958,841 36,645,075

Finance lease Financial liability measured at amortised cost 2,065,350 2,855,372

Financial guarantee Financial liability measured at amortised cost 3,151,285 -
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The following table presents the total net gains or losses for each category of financial assets and financial liabilities:

2015

Loans and 
Receivables

Financial 
Liabilities at 

amortised cost Total

Finance income 7,199,876 - 7,199,876

Finance charges - (693,673) (693,673)

7,199,876 (693,673) 6,506,203

2014

Loans and 
Receivables

Financial 
Liabilities at 

amortised cost Total

Finance income 4,317,523 - 4,317,523

Finance charges - (587,449) (587,449)

4,317,523 (587,449) 3,730,074

Interest rate risk

The cidb is exposed to interest rate changes in respect of returns on its investments with financial institutions and finance cost 

payable on finance lease contracted with external party. cidb’s interest rate profile consists of fixed and floating rate bank 

balances which expose cidb to fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest risk. cidb’s exposure is managed by investing in 

current accounts, call accounts and short-term maturity accounts mainly in two Fitch credit rated financial institutions.

Change 
investments (%)

Upward 
Change

Downward 
Change

2015

Cash and cash equivalents 1 1,229,187 (1,229,187)

2014

Cash and cash equivalents 1 985,014 (985,014)
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Credit risk

Credit risk consists mainly of cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables. The cidb only deposits cash with major 

banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party. The cidb trades only with recognised, 

creditworthy third parties and monitors receivable balances on an on-going basis with the result that the cidb’s exposure to bad 

debts is not significant.

With respect to credit risks arising from the other financial assets of the cidb, which comprises cash and cash equivalents, the 

cidb’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counter-party, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of 

these instruments. The cidb’s cash and cash equivalents are placed with high credit quality financial institution therefore the credit 

risk with respect to cash and cash equivalents is limited.

Trade and other receivables, cidb is not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of 

counterparties having similar characteristics. Trade receivables consists of a large number of customers in various industries and 

geographical areas within South Africa. Based on historical information about customer default rates management consider the 

credit quality of trade receivables that are not past due or impaired to be good. Management evaluated credit risk relating to 

customers on an ongoing basis. No credit limits were exceeded during the reporting period and management does not expect 

any deficits from non-performance by these counterparties. The maximum exposure to credit risk of trade and other receivablesis 

represented by the carrying amount in the statement of financial position after taking into account that all receivable services are 

paid for in advance. None of the cidb’s financial assets are secured by collateral or other credit enhancements such as guarantees.

Exposure to credit risk

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:

2015
R

2014
R

Financial instrument

Cash and cash equivalents 122,918,708 98,501,419

Trade and other receivables 303,554 331,352
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Ageing of financial assets

The following tables provide information regarding the credit quality of financial assets which may expose the cidb to credit risk:

2015
Neither past due nor 

impaired

Past due but not 
impaired - less than 

2 months

Past due but not 
impaired - more than 

2 months Carrying Value

Cash and cash equivalents 122,918,708 - - 122,918,708

Trade and other receivables - - 303,554 303,554

122,918,708 - 303,554 123,222,262

2014
Neither past due nor 

impaired

Past due but not 
impaired - less than 

2 months

Past due but not 
impaired - more than 

2 months Carrying Value

Cash and cash equivalents 98,501,419 98,501,419

Trade and other receivables - - 331,352 331,352

98,501,419 - 331,352 98,832,771

Concentration of credit risk 

The maximum exposure to credit risk for financial assets at the reporting date by Fitch credit rating category was as follows:

2015 BBB- BBB+ Unrated

Cash and cash equivalents 97,684,179 25,227,300 7,229

Other receivables - - 303,554

97,684,179 25,227,300 310,783

2014 BBB- BBB+ Unrated

Cash and cash equivalents 81,924,687 16,567,711 9,021

Other receivables - - 331,352

81,924,687 16,567,711 340,373

27. Events After the Reporting Date

Two external members were appointed to serve on the Audit and Risk Committee with effect from 1 May 2015 for a period of 

three years, the new members replace the two external members whose term came to an end. These new members are not full 

time Board members.

Furthermore subsequent to the end of the Financial Year, cidb issued a financial guarantee amounting to R3,151,285 as a security 

bond in a Labour Court dispute. This matter is adequately disclosed in Note 18 of these Annual Financial Statements.
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28. Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure

2015
R

2014
R

i. Fraudulent request for a refund by a contractor - 30,297

ii. Cell phone airtime paid for stolen cell phone - 151,026

iii. Interest and penalty levied by SARS - 3,833

-  185,156

In terms of section 55(2)(b)(i) of the Public Finance Management Act No.1 of 1999, the Annual Financial Statements must include 

particulars of any irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is expenditure made in vain 

and would have been avoided had reasonable care been exercised. All unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

is charged against income in the period in which they are incurred.

There was no fruitless or wasteful expenditure incurred during the period under review.

29.   Irregular Expenditure

Opening balance 5,954,735 7,785,493

Add: Irregular Expenditure - current year 5,897,269 2,881,790

Less: Amounts condoned (11,504,559) (4,712,548)

347,445 5,954,735

Details of current year irregular expenditure - not recoverable

Legacy contracts Description Amounts

Inconsistent evaluation criteria applied The contract was terminated and new interim contracts are 

in place. No action taken as the employee concerned left the 

organisation.

1,398,439

No supporting documentation of SCM process 

followed

The new contract was advertised and is at the evaluation 

stage. No action taken as the employee concerned left the 

organisation.

1,594,181

No contract The process of arranging a new contract has started. No action 

taken as the employee concerned left the organisation.

58,525

Expired contract The contract has since been terminated and new interim 

contracts are in place. No action taken as the employee 

concerned left the organisation.

42,685

New transactions Description Amounts

SCM process not followed. Instruction received 

to issue a purchase order without any approval 

and supporting documents.

Identification and appointment of a service provider (not listed in 

the SCM database to co-ordinate an event in Cape Town.

118,000

SCM process not followed in the deviation and 

extension of scope of contract

Internal investigation into the registration of contractors in the 

cidb

2,337,994

Inconsistent evaluation criteria applied The matter is currently under investigation and will be reported 

accordingly in line with SCM policy.

347,445

5,897,269
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Details of irregular expenditure not recoverable

In all Irregular Expenditure that has been condoned by the Board, services were rendered. As such, the amounts are being written 

off as a note to these Annual Financial Statements and not against savings as there was no debtor raised for the recovery. The 

nature of a majority of these irregular transactions was as a result of weak internal controls within SCM that existed in the past 

which were exacerbated by the fact that the SCM operations were to a large extent decentralised and the policies and procedures 

governing SCM were not in existence. Since the end of 2012, the SCM unit structure has been given the neccessary attention, 

applicable policies implemented and the staff have been work-shopped and given neccessary training including the appointment 

and training of SCM Bid Committees.

30.   Budget Differences

Material differences between budget and actual amounts

The cidb budget is approved on a cash basis by functional classification. The approved budget covers the period from 1 April 

to 31 March each year. The Annual Financial Statements and budget documents are prepared for the same period. For the 

Financial Year ended 31 March 2015, there is a basis difference: the budget is prepared on a cash basis and the Annual Financial 

Statements are prepared on the accrual basis. The cidb is not allowed to budget for a surplus; however, for the Financial Year 

ended 31 March 2015, revenue collected exceeded the expenditure incurred resulting in a net surplus of R21,185,450.

This under-spending is as a result of over collection of revenue, by R23,198,238 above its budget which was offset by non-cash 

items of R5,618,042 which were not budgeted for in the allocation for the Financial Year under review. These non-cash items not 

budgeted were anticipated to be absorbed and offset in the accumulated surplus of R68 million from previous years as the cidb 

had received approval from the National Treasury to retain the surplus funds.

After taking into account the restated opening accumulated surplus of R68,577,935, this resulted in the increase in the accumulated 

surplus to R89,763,385 at the end of the Financial Year. It must further be mentioned that cidb is currently busy with the 

investigation into the construction cartel stemming from the outcome of the Competition Commission Tribunal. As such, cidb 

did not allocate this over-collection to any other operational items as it needed to ensure that the investigation into the 15 firms 

and the additional 22 firms (in terms of the Competition Commission’s second phase of investigations) will be provided for. The 

investigations were still ongoing as at end of March 2015.
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PART A: PROGRESS AGAINST ANNUAL PERFORMANCE PLAN 
OBJECTIVES

Programme 1: Construction Registers Services (CRS)

Programme purpose: Implement, manage and improve national registration services covering the Register of Contractors (RoC), 

Register of Projects (RoP) and new Registers that may be implemented in terms of the CIDB Act.

No. Strategic 
Objective Output Performance 

Indicator
Performance 

Target 
Performance 

Progress Deviation

1.1 Effective 
and efficient 
registration 
service.

Quarterly 
registration 
report.

% of compliance 
with the legislated 
turnaround 
time of 21 
working days 
for processing 
compliant Grade 
2-9 applications.

92% compliance 
with the legislated 
turnaround 
time of 21 
working days 
for processing 
compliant Grade 
2-9 applications 
by end of March 
2015.

Not Achieved

There were 
20,106 Grade 2 
to 9 applications 
received by 
the end of the 
Financial Year 
(4 quarters) of 
which 16,951 
applications were 
processed within 
a period of 21 
working days 
which amounts to 
84% compliance 
with the legislated  
turnaround.

In an effort to minimise the 
downgrading of contractors, 
the cidb affords contractors 
adequate time to move from 
a status of non-compliant 
to compliant. The resulting 
document submission from 
contractors (applicants) 
often takes more than 
one submission to become 
compliant. Therefore the 
status of applications 
may change a few times 
between non-compliant 
and compliant, yet the 
turnaround counter does not 
commence from the date 
when the applications was 
last marked as compliant, it 
uses the initial compliancy 
date.

Register of 
Contractors 
Query Ad-
ministration 
report.

% of contractor 
registration que-
ries to be admin-
istered within a 
period of two 
working days from 
the time of receipt 
(Administration of 
queries involves 
acknowledge-
ment, investiga-
tion and routing 
of queries for reso-
lution).

96% of contractor 
registration 
queries to be 
administered 
within a period of 
two working days 
from the time of 
receipt by end of 
March 2015.

Achieved

A total of 4,068 
queries were 
received at 
the end of the 
Financial Year 
and all were 
administered 
within the 
stipulated 
turnaround time 
of two working 
days which 
amounts to 100% 
achievement.

Improved production 
outputs have contributed to 
the efficient administration 
of queries. The support of 
the production line functions 
to the query resolutions 
team has contributed to the 
target being exceeded. 

Register 
of Projects 
Query Ad-
ministration 
report.

% client support 
enquiries related 
to the usage of 
the Register of 
Projects to be 
administered 
within a period 
of two working 
days from the 
time of receipt.  
(Administration of 
support enquiries 
involves acknowl-
edgement, investi-
gation and routing 
of enquiries for 
resolution).

96% client 
support enquiries 
related to the 
usage of the 
Register of 
Projects to be 
administered 
within a period of 
two working days 
from the time of 
receipt by end of 
March 2015.

Achieved

There were 748 
enquiries related 
to the usage 
of Register of 
Projects received 
in all quarters 
and all of them 
were administered 
within a period of 
two working days 
from the time 
of receipt. This 
amounts to 100% 
achievement.

Well trained and 
knowledgeable staff, 
together with adequate 
resourcing has enabled 
a high quality service to 
clients for queries related 
to I-Tender / Register of 
Projects.

The efficient functioning of 
the online software system 
also contributed to the 
target being exceeded.
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No. Strategic 
Objective Output Performance 

Indicator
Performance 

Target 
Performance 

Progress Deviation

Register of 
Contractors 
data 
rectification 
report.

% of data capture 
errors on Grade 
2-9 registrations 
contained in 
the quarterly 
production report 
rectified within 
a period of 10 
working days 
turnaround time.

96% of data 
capture errors 
identified to be 
rectified within 
a period of 10 
working days 
for Grades 2 to 
9 registrations 
by end of 
March 2015.

Achieved

There were 1,113 
data capture 
errors recorded in 
the year and out 
of this total, 1,093 
were corrected 
within a period of 
10 working days 
which amounts to 
98% achievement.

Over achievement against 
the target was due to users 
correcting reversed files 
immediately upon receipt. 
This is also as a result of 
users being appropriately 
resourced and well trained 
to attend to data quality 
issues.

Furthermore, the quality 
control process is enforced 
through the registration 
software system. An 
application will not proceed 
to the next stage unless 
quality control has been 
completed.

CRS Fraud 
Prevention 
and 
Detection 
Plan.

Development 
of CRS Fraud 
Prevention and 
Detection Plan 
approved by 
EXCO.

1 * CRS Fraud 
Prevention and 
Detection Plan 
approved by EXCO 
by 30 June 2014.

Achieved

1 * CRS Fraud 
Prevention and 
Detection Plan 
was developed 
and approved by 
EXCO on 24 June 
2014.

1.2 Improved 
contractor 
registration 
criteria.

Regulation 
Amendments 
Recommen-
dation report 
detailing 
amendments  
to registra-
tion criteria  
for improved 
alignment 
with the 
state of de-
velopment of 
the emerging 
sector.

Regulation 
Amendments 
Recommendation 
report related 
to contractor 
registration criteria 
submitted to DPW 
Policy Unit for 
approval.

1 x Regulation 
Amendments 
Recommendation 
report related  
to contractor 
registration criteria 
submitted to 
DPW Policy Unit 
for approval by 
30 June 2014.

Achieved

1 x Regulation 
Amendments 
recommendation 
report was 
developed and 
submitted to 
DPW Policy Unit 
for approval on 
26 June 2014.
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Programme 2: Construction Industry Performance (CIP)

Programme purpose: To determine, establish and promote appropriate measures aimed at improved performance and best 

practice of public and private sector clients, contractors and other participants in the construction delivery process.

Purpose
To determine, establish and promote appropriate measures aimed at improved performance 
and best practice of public and private sector clients, contractors and other participants in the 
construction delivery process.

Objective Statement
Improved performance and best practice for an industry that delivers reliable value to clients, 
investors and end-users, information on construction industry indicators to inform cidb strategy, 
policy makers and stakeholders.

Key Policy Priority Construction industry performance.

Expected Outcome Monitoring the Performance of the Construction Industry.

No. Strategic 
Objective Output Performance 

Indicator Performance Target Performance 
Progress Deviation

2.1 Develop and 
implement 
the best 
practice 
registers in 
support of 
improving 
the 
performance 
of the 
industry.

cidb Best 
Practice 
Contractor 
Recognition 
Scheme 
(Standards, 
Process and 
recognition 
criteria).

Number of report 
on feasibility of 
establishing Best 
Practice Financial and 
Project Management 
System, with go/
no-go assessment 
submitted to 
Programme Manager. 

1 x report on 
feasibility of 
establishing Best 
Practice Financial and 
Project Management 
System, with go/
no-go assessment 
submitted to 
Programme Manager 
by end-March 2015.

Achieved
 
Feasibility of 
establishing Best 
Practice Financial and 
Project Management 
System, was 
submitted to the 
Programme manager 
on 24 March 2015.  

Feasibility report of 
establishing  Best 
Practice  Integrity 
Management 
System, with go/
no-go assessment 
submitted to 
Programme Manage.r 

1 x report on 
feasibility of 
establishing Best 
Practice Integrity 
Management 
System, with go/
no-go assessment 
submitted to 
Programme Manager 
by end-March 2015.

Achieved
 
Report on feasibility 
of establishing Best 
Practice Financial and 
Project Management 
System, was 
submitted to the 
Programme Manager 
on 24 March 2015.  

cidb Best 
Practice 
Project 
Assessment 
Scheme 
(Standards, 
Regulation 
and 
Compliance 
Monitoring).

Number of 
Regulation 
Amendments scoping 
documents for cidb 
Best Practice Project 
Assessment Scheme 
submitted to DPW.

1 x Regulation 
Amendments scoping 
document for cidb 
Best Practice Project 
Assessment Scheme 
submitted to DPW 
by end-August 2014 
for development of 
Regulation.

Achieved

Regulation 
Amendments 
scoping document 
for cidb Best Practice 
Project Assessment 
Scheme was 
submitted to DPW on 
20 August 2014.
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No. Strategic 
Objective Output Performance 

Indicator Performance Target Performance 
Progress Deviation

Number of Annual 
Assessment 
Reports on state of 
implementation of 
cidb Best Practice 
Project Assessment 
Scheme submitted 
to cidb Board for 
noting, including:
•  number of 

projects enrolled 
•  process 

and system 
functionality

•  cidb Provincial 
Office 
capacitation

•  client and 
contractor 
feedback

•  recommendations 
for enhancing 
implementation 
of  cidb Best 
Practice project 
Assessment 
Scheme.

1 x Annual 
Assessment 
Report on state of 
implementation of 
cidb Best Practice 
Project Assessment  
Scheme submitted to 
cidb Board for noting 
by end-March 2015.

Partially Achieved

Assessment 
Report on state of 
implementation of 
cidb Best Practice 
Project Assessment 
Scheme submitted to 
Board Administrator 
on 23 March 2015 for 
inclusion on Board 
agenda.

Assessment 
Report on state of 
implementation of 
cidb Best Practice 
Project Assessment 
Scheme has been 
submitted to Board 
Secretariat to be 
included on Board 
agenda, but has  not 
yet been tabled at 
the Board.

cidb 
Register of 
Professional 
Service 
Providers 
(Standards, 
Regulation 
and 
Compliance 
Monitoring).

Number of cidb 
Framework 
for Register of 
Professional 
Services Providers 
submitted to DPW 
for endorsement for 
submission to cidb 
Board:
•  cidb Standard 

for Performance 
Reports for 
Professional 
Services Providers 
(Design)

•  cidb Standard 
for Performance 
Reports for 
Professional 
Services Providers 
(Client’s Agent)

•  Recognition 
Criteria: 
Professional 
Service Providers.

1 x cidb Framework 
for Register of 
Professional 
Services Providers 
submitted to DPW 
for endorsement for 
submission to cidb 
Board by end-March 
2015:
•  cidb Standard 

for Performance 
Reports for 
Professional 
Services Providers 
(Design)

•  cidb Standard 
for Performance 
Reports for 
Professional 
Services Providers 
(Client’s Agent)

•  Recognition 
Criteria: 
Professional 
Service Providers.

Achieved

Framework 
for Register of 
Professional 
Services Providers 
submitted to DPW 
for endorsement 
and submission 
to cidb Board on 
20 March 2015.
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Objective Output Performance 

Indicator Performance Target Performance 
Progress Deviation

2.2 Support the 
development 
and 
promotion of 
infrastructure 
delivery skills.

cidb 
Infrastructure 
Delivery Skills 
Program 
(SDA, World 
Skills, PG 
Conference).

Number of 
cidb Criteria for 
Recognition of 
Skills Development 
Agencies (SDAs) 
that can participate 
in the placement 
of learners and 
candidates in terms 
of the cidb Standard 
for Developing 
Skills through 
Infrastructure 
Contracts approved 
by Exco.

1 x cidb Criteria for 
Recognition of SDAs 
approved by Exco by 
end-May 2014.

Achieved
cidb criteria for 
Recognition SDA’s 
was approved 
by EXCO on 
6 May 2014.

Number of cidb 
operated or 
facilitated SDA with 
a capacity to manage 
50 learners per year 
established and 
operational.

1 x cidb operated or 
facilitated SDA with 
a capacity to manage 
50 learners per year 
established and 
operational by end-
December 2014.

Achieved:
cidb SDA established 
for managing 50 
or more learners, 
operations manual 
complete and all 
systems ready.

Number of Business 
Plan for establishing 
WorldSkills ZA 
Construction Chapter 
submitted to cidb 
Board for noting. 

1 x Business Plan 
for establishing 
WorldSkills ZA 
Construction Chapter 
submitted to cidb 
Board for noting by 
end-August 2014.

Partially Achieved 
Business Plan Plan 
for establishing 
WorldSkills ZA 
Construction Chapter 
was submitted to 
Board Secretariat for 
inclusion on agenda 
on 15 August 2014.

Business Plan Plan 
for establishing 
WorldSkills ZA 
Construction Chapter 
has been submitted 
to Board Secretariat 
to be included on 
Board agenda, but 
has  not yet been 
tabled at the Board.

Number of cidb Post 
Graduate (PG) or 
Doctoral Workshop/
Conference hosted 
annually.

1 x Doctoral 
Workshop hosted by 
end-March 2015.

Achieved
Doctoral workshop 
was held on 
4 February 2015 at 
the University of 
Cape Town.

2.3 Monitor and
evaluate the
performance
of the 
construction
industry.

Monitoring
reports,
and sector
specific
status
reports.

Number of cidb 
Construction Industry 
Indicators (CIIs) 
Summary Results 
monitoring client 
and contractor 
perceptions and 
procurement 
indicators published 
in pdf format on cidb 
Web.

1 x 2013 CIIs 
published in pdf 
format on cidb web 
by end-January 2015.

Achieved
CIIs report published 
on 16 January 2015.

Number of cidb 
Quarterly Monitor 
monitoring the state 
of the development 
of the industry 
(Black Ownership, 
Upgrades, Spent 
etc.) published in pdf 
format on cidb Web.

4 x cidb Quarterly 
Monitor published in 
pdf format on cidb 
web in 2014/15 (end-
Apr, Jul, Oct, Jan).

Achieved
4 x cidb Quarterly 
Monitor published in 
pdf format on cidb 
web in 2014/15 (end-
Apr, Jul, Oct, Jan).
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Objective Output Performance 

Indicator Performance Target Performance 
Progress Deviation

Number of cidb SME 
Business Conditions 
Survey monitoring 
Business Conditions 
(business confidence, 
competition, 
employment, 
access to credit) by 
Grade and Province 
published in pdf 
format on cidb Web.

4 x cidb SME Business 
Conditions Survey 
published in  pdf 
format on cidb web 
2014/15 (end-Apr, 
Jul, Oct, Jan).

Achieved
4 x cidb SME Business 
Conditions Survey 
published in  pdf 
format on cidb web 
2014/15 (end-Apr, 
Jul, Oct, Jan).

Number of cidb 
Compliance Monitor 
monitoring state 
of compliance by 
client departments 
with requirements 
for tender notices, 
tender awards and 
contract closure 
published in pdf 
format on cidb Web.

4 x cidb Compliance 
Monitor published in 
pdf format on cidb 
web 2014/15 (end-
Apr, Jul, Oct, Jan).

Achieved
4 x cidb Compliance 
Monitor published in 
pdf format on cidb 
web 2014/15 (end-
Apr, Jul, Oct, Jan).

Number of sector  
status reports 
published in pdf 
format on cidb Web, 
on: 
•  1 x sector status 

report  on 
Employment 
and Labour in 
Construction.

1 x final draft Report 
on Employment 
and Labour in 
Construction 
submitted to 
Programme Manager 
by end-March 2015.

Achieved 
Final draft Report 
on Employment 
and Labour in 
Construction 
submitted to the 
Programme Manager 
on 20 March 2015.
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Programme 3: Procurement and Delivery Management (PDM)

Programme purpose: Develop, promote and monitor uniform application of cidb prescripts throughout all organs of state and 

industry stakeholders including procurement standards, construction procurement reform, improved infrastructure delivery 

management practices and the cidb Code of Conduct.

No. Strategic 
Objective Output Performance 

Indicator Performance Target Performance 
Progress Deviation

3.1 Improving 
Public Sector 
Construction 
Procurement 
and Delivery 
Manage-
ment.

Revised 
Infrastructure 
Delivery 
Management 
Toolkit 
(IDMT).

3 year review and 
revision of  IDMT 
published on the cidb 
website. 

3 year review and 
revision of  IDMT by 
end of March 2015. 

Partially achieved

The approval from 
National Treasury 
to proceed with 
the review of IDMT 
has not yet been 
formalised.
 
The review process 
is at inception phase 
and the roll out will 
be undertaken in the 
next Financial Year.

National Treasury 
has appointed a 
Consultant to initiate 
the process of the 
review of IDMT. 
A meeting with 
National Treasury 
and cidb to discuss 
the roles and 
responsibilities for 
the review of IDMT 
that will be held end 
April 2015.

3.2 Improvement  
and mainte-
nance of the 
regulations 
to enhance 
procurement 
reform and 
delivery man-
agement.

Prescripts for 
construction 
infrastructure 
project 
delivery.

Number of prescript 
for Gateway Reviews 
submitted to DPW.

1 x Prescript for 
Gateway Reviews 
submitted to DPW by 
end of March 2015.  

Achieved

The prescript for 
Gateway Reviews has 
been developed and 
submitted to DPW. 

Review and revision 
of Part 5 of cid 
regulations submitted 
to DPW. 

1 x Review and 
revision of Part 5 of 
the cid regulations 
submitted to DPW by 
March 2015.

Achieved

Review and revision 
of Part 5 of cid 
regulations submitted 
to DPW. 

Review and revision 
of the cidb Standard 
for Uniformity 
submitted to DPW.

1 x Review and 
revision of Standard 
for Uniformity 
submitted to DPW by 
March 2015.

Achieved

Review and revision 
of the cidb Standard 
for Uniformity 
submitted to DPW. 
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Objective Output Performance 

Indicator Performance Target Performance 
Progress Deviation

3.3 Improving 
the Public 
Sector 
capability 
and capacity.

Enhanced cli-
ent capability 
and industry 
capacity for 
procurement 
and delivery 
manage-
ment.

Number of 
Construction 
Procurement Officers 
(CPO) Forums to build 
client capability per 
year and 2 x industry 
focus group meetings 
per annum. 

9x CPO forums  to 
build client capability  
per year and 2 
x industry focus 
group meetings per 
annum by end of 
March 2015.

Achieved

9 x CPO Forums 
were hosted as at 
20 February 2015.

Achieved

2 x industry focus 
group meeting 
on revision of the 
SFU held as at 
6 March 2015.

Number of Training 
and capacitation 
sessions per year, 
(on procurement 
outcomes for 
client Contractor 
Development 
Programs CDP’s, 
IDMT and other 
procurement related 
topics).

9 x Training and 
capacitation sessions 
per year by end 
March 2015.

Achieved

9 x Training and 
Capacitation 
Sessions held as at 
19 March 2015.

3.4 Improving 
construction 
procurement 
skills.

Construction  
procurement 
skills 
competence 
standards.

Final model and 
prescripts for 
Competence 
Standards submitted 
to DPW. 

1 x final model 
and prescripts 
for Competence 
Standards submitted 
to DPW by end of 
March 2015.

Achieved

Final model 
developed and 
prescripts for 
Competence 
Standards 
incorporated into 
the Standard for 
Uniformity submitted 
to DPW by end of 
March 2015.

3.5 Improving 
Compliance 
Monitoring 
and 
Enforcement 
to cidb 
Regulatory 
Framework.

Annual report on 
Implementation of 
Compliance strategy. 

1 x annual report on 
Implementation of 
Compliance strategy 
by end March 2015.

Achieved

Annual report on 
implementation of 
compliance strategy 
was finalised on 
31 March 2015.

Anti-
corruption 
strategy.

Draft prescripts 
for transparency 
requirements into 
the cidb regulatory 
framework.

Draft prescripts 
for transparency 
requirements into 
the cidb regulatory 
framework 
by March 2015. 

Achieved

Draft prescripts 
for transparency 
requirements 
incorporated into 
the Standard for 
Uniformity.
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Programme 4: Provincial Offices and Contractor Development (PCD)

Programme purpose: To develop and promote measures that assist organs of state in the planning, decision making, implementation 

and monitoring of contractor development. 

No. Strategic 
Objective Output Performance 

Indicator Performance Target Performance 
Progress Deviation

4.1 To entrench 
the NCDP 
framework 
awareness 
and improve 
CDP imple-
mentation 
as per the 
guidelines.

CDP 
compliance 
reports. 

% of alignment to 
the CDP guidelines of 
2 client departments 
per province CDP’s.

90% (cumulative 
quarter on quarter) 
alignment to the CDP 
guidelines checklist 
(to be developed by 
30 June 2014) of 2 
client departments 
per province by 
31 March 2015.

Not achieved

5 provinces (NW, 
GP, KZN, LP and FS 
and have aligned 2 x 
CDP’s at the required 
90% compliance 
level. 

EC and NC have 
partially aligned and 
MP, and WC have not 
met the target.

Reason for 
deviation:

MP, EC, WC, and 
NC CDP’s are still at 
inception stages.

Quarterly 
Reports  on 
capacitation 
of local 
Government 
on the NCDP.

% of municipalities  
per province 
capacitated on the 
NCDP.

60% (cumulative 
quarter on quarter) 
of municipalities per 
province capacitated 
on the NCDP by end 
of March 2015.

Achieved

All provinces reached 
the 60% target 
of capacitating 
municipalities on 
NCDP.

e-learning 
guideline 
system. 

2 Annual analysis 
reports on CDP’s 
to NCDP Steering 
Committee Meetings 
(SCM) reflecting 2 
Municipalities per 
province trained.

2 Annual analysis 
reports on CDP’s to 
NCDP SCM reflecting 
2 Municipalities per 
province trained by 
end of March 2015 
on how to establish 
a CDP. 

Achieved

2 Analysis reports 
on CDP’s have been 
tabled to NCDP SCM.

A minimum of 2 
municipalities in 
every province have 
been trained by end 
March on the CDP 
guidelines E-Learning 
system as well as at 
PCDF’s.

4.2 Strengthen 
the Enabling 
environment 
for contrac-
tor develop-
ment.

Electronic 
Monitoring 
and 
evaluation 
system 
report.

% of Public Sector 
CDPs are registered 
on the cidb electronic 
Monitoring and 
evaluation system 
at the requisite 
data quality and 
completeness level.
 

90% (cumulative 
quarter on quarter) 
of Public Sector CDPs 
are registered on 
the cidb electronic 
Monitoring and 
evaluation system by 
end of March 2015.

Achieved

An electronic Excel 
Monitoring and 
Evaluation system is 
in place. Clients are 
currently using the 
guideline aligned 
M&E system and 
100% of all CDP’s are 
registered.

All clients subscribed 
to the registration 
exceeding the target 
set of 90%.
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Objective Output Performance 

Indicator Performance Target Performance 
Progress Deviation

4.3 Efficient and 
effective 
Registration 
service.

Quarterly 
registration 
report.

% of Gr1 compliant 
registrations 
activated within 
a 2 working day 
turnaround time 
from time of receipt 
reported per quarter.

85% of Gr1 compliant 
registrations 
activated within 
a 2 working day 
turnaround time 
from time of receipt 
reported per quarter 
(within 1 month 
thereafter).

Achieved

Average performance 
over the entire year 
was at 92% against 
the target of 85.

We were able to 
share CRS resources 
and optimise staff 
and processes 
and systems in 
Q4 resulting in 
the quarter and 
annual target being 
exceeded by 6%. 
Furthermore, we 
have improved the 
weekly monitoring 
interventions and 
file reallocations 
and oversight of the 
provincial offices 
in terms of HO 
addressing work load 
bottlenecks.

4.4 cidb 
provincial 
offices 
services 
customer 
satisfaction.

Contractor 
satisfaction 
reports with 
actions and 
remedial 
measures for 
complaints.

% of satisfaction 
from Customer 
bi-annual survey 
averaged across all 
provinces from a 
minimum sample 
of10% of office walk-
ins.

90% satisfaction 
from Customer 
bi-annual survey 
averaged across all 
provinces from a 
minimum sample of 
10% of office walk-
ins.

Achieved

An average customer 
satisfaction of 92% 
was achieved.

Monthly remedial 
actions were taken 
by the Provincial 
Managers in terms 
of clearing all  
complaints.

4.5 Customer 
relations and 
Provincial 
offices effi-
ciency and  
Management 
(inclusive 
of outreach 
and visibility/ 
communi-
cations of 
cidb cross 
programme 
initiatives).

Provincial 
Construction 
Development 
Fora (PCDFs).

Number of Provincial 
Construction 
Development Fora 
(PCDFs) held per 
province inviting 
provincial clients 
departments, 
associations and 
professional bodies 
(at least 2 of each in 
attendance).

Two (2) Provincial 
Construction 
Development Fora 
(PCDFs) held per 
province inviting 
provincial clients 
departments, 
associations and 
professional bodies 
held per quarter 
incorporating all 
4 core cidb prog 
capacitation issues.

Achieved

All provinces have 
held two PCDF by 
end 31 March 2015.
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